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FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

We make forward looking statements in this Annual Report that are subject to risks and uncertainties

These forward-looking statements include information about possible or assumed future results of our

business financial condition liquidity results of operations plans and objectives Statements regarding

the following subjects among others are forward looking by their nature

our business strategy

our projected operating results

our ability to acquire or develop net-leased facilities

availability of suitable facilities to acquire or develop

our ability to enter into and the termsof our prospective leases and loans

our ability to raise additional funds through offerings of debt and equity security and or

property disposals

our ability to obtain future financing arrangements

estimates relating to and our ability to pay future distributions

our ability to compete in the marketplace

lease rates and interest rates

market trends

projected capital expenditures and

the impact of technology on our facilities operations and business

The forward-looking statements are based on our beliefs assumptions and expectations of our future

performance taking into account information currently available to us These beliefs assumptions and

expectations can change as result of many possible events or factors not all of which are known to us If

change occurs our business financial condition liquidity and results of operations may vary materially

from those expressed in our forward-looking statements You should carefully consider these risks before

you make an investment decision with respect to our common stock and other securities along with

among others the following factors that could cause actual results to vary from our forward-looking

statements

the factors referenced in the sections captioned Risk Factors Managements Discussion and Analysis

of Financial Condition and Results of Operations and Business in our Form 10-K for the year ended

December 312012

national and local business real estate and other market conditions

the competitive environment in which we operate

the execution of our business plan

financing risks

acquisition and development risks

potential environmental contingencies and other liabilities

other factors affecting the real estate industry generally or the healthcare real estate industry

in particular

our ability to maintain our status as real estate investment trust or REIT for federal and state income

tax purposes

our ability to attract and retain qualified personnel

federal and state healthcare and other regulatory requirements and

national and local economic conditions which may have negative effect on the following among

other things

the financial condition of our tenants our lenders and institutions that hold our cash balances

which may expose us to increased risks of default by these parties

our ability to obtain equity or debt financing on attractive terms or at all which may adversely

impact our ability to pursue acquisition and development opportunities and our future interest

expense and

the value of our real estate assets which may limit our ability to dispose of assets at attractive

prices or obtain or maintain debt financing secured by our properties or on an unsecured basis

WThen we use the words believe expect may potential anticipate estimate plan

will could intend or similar expressions we are identifying forward-looking statements You

should not place undue reliance on these forward-looking statements Except as required by law we

disclaim any obligation to update such statements or to publicly announce the result of any revisions

to any of the forward-looking statements contained in this Annual Report to reflect future events

or developments
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders

of Medical Properties Trust Inc

We have audited in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board

United States the consolidated balance sheets of Medical Properties Trust Inc and its subsidiaries

as of December 31 2012 and December 31 2011 and the related consolidated statements of income

comprehensive income equity and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December

31 2012 not presented herein appearing in Medical Properties Trust Inc.s annual report on Form

10 for the year ended December 31 2012 and in our report dated February 22 2013 we expressed an

unqualified opinion on those consolidated financial statements

In our opinion the information set forth in the accompanying condensed consolidated financial

statements is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the consolidated financial statements

from which it has been derived

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Birmingham Alabama

February222013
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ASSETS

MEDICAL PROPERTIES TRUST INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

December 31

2012 2011

Amounts in thousands

except for per share data

Real estate assets

Land

Buildings and improvements

Construction in progress and other

Intangible lease assets

Real estate held for sale

Net investment in direct financing leases

Mortgage loans

Gross investment in real estate assets

Accumulated depreciation

Accumulated amortization

Net investment in real estate assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Interest and rent receivables

Straight line rent receivables

Other loans

Other assets

Total Assets

105505

1017443

30903

51206

59793

314412

368650 165000

1963777 1429850

114399 84466

12335 8722

1837043 1336662

37311 102726

45289 29862

35860 33993

159243 74839

64140 43792

2178886 1621874

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Liabilities

Debt net

Accounts payable and accrued expenses

Deferred revenue

Lease deposits and other obligations to tenants

Total liabilities

Commitments and Contingencies

Equity

Preferred stock 80.001 par value Authorized 10000 shares no shares outstanding

Common stock $0001 par value Authorized 250000 shares issued and outstanding

136335 shares at December 31 2012 and 110786 shares at December 312011

Additional paid in capital

Distributions in excess of net income

Accumulated other comprehensive loss

Treasury shares at cost

Total Equity

Total Liabilities and Equity

1025160 689849

65961 51125

20609 23307

17342 28778

1129072 793059

136 it

1295916 1055256

233494 214059

12482 12231

262 262

1049814 828815

2178886 1621874

110364

1079188

38339

52824

32
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MEDICAL PROPERTIES TRUST INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

For the Years Ended December 31

Revenues

Rent billed

Straight line rent

Income from direct financing leases

Interest and fee income

Total revenues

Expenses

Real estate depreciation and amortization

Impairment charge

Property related

Acquisition expenses

General and administrative

Total operating expense

Operating income

Other income expense

Interest and other expense income

Earnings from equity and other interests

Debt refinancing costs

Interest expense

Net other expenses

Income from continuing operations

Income from discontinued operations

Net income

Net income attributable to non controlling interests

Net income attributable to MPT common stockholders

Earnings per share basic

2012 2011 2010

Amounts in thousands except for per share data

123080 108735 80270

7982 5379 1165

21728

48607 21370 26589

201397 135484 108024

33545 30896

1495 738

5420 4184 2026

28582 27219 26509

69042 63037 65813

132355 72447 42211

1662

2943 78

14214 6716

58243 43810 33984

56962 57928 39182

75393 14519 3029

14684 12195 19983

90077 26714 23012

177 178 99
89900 26536 22913

0.56 0.12

0.11 0.11 0.20

0.67 0.23 0.22

132331 110623 100706

0.j6 0.12

0.11 0.11 0.20

0.67 0.23 0.22

132333 110629 100708

20897

12000

4381

18 1473

45

Income from continuing operations attributable to MPT common stockholders

Income from discontinued operations attributable to MPT common stockholders

Net income attributable to MPT common stockholders

Weighted average shares outstanding basic

Earnings per share diluted

Income from continuing operations attributable to MPT common stockholders

Income from discontinued operations attributable to MPT common stockholders

Net income attributable to MPT common stockholders

Weighted average shares outstanding diluted

0.02

0.02

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements 33



MEDICAL PROPERTIES TRUST INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the Years Ended December 31

Net income

Other comprehensive income loss

Unrealized loss on interest rate swap

Total comprehensive income

Comprehensive income attributable to non-controlling interests

Comprehensive income attributable to MPT common stockholders

2012 2011 2010

Amounts in thousands

90077 26714 23012

251 8590 3641

89826 18124 19371

177 178 99
89649 17946 19272
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MEDICAL PROPERTIES TRUST INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF EQUITY
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31 2012 2011 AND 2010

Balance at December 312009

Net income

Unrealized loss on interest rate swaps

Stock vesting and amortization of stock-based compensation

Distributions to non controlling interests

Extinguishment of convertible debt

Proceeds from offering net of offering Costs

Dividends declared $0.80 per common share

Balance at December 31 2010

Net income

Unrealized loss on interest rate swaps

Stock vesting and amortization of stock based compensation

Purchase of non controlling interest

Extinguishment of convertible debt

Distributions to non controlling interests

Dividends declared $0.80 per common share

Balance at December 31 2011

Net income

Unrealized loss on interest rate swaps

Stock vesting and amortization of stock based compensation

Distributions to non-controlling interests

Proceeds from offering net of offering COStS

Dividends declared $0.80 per common share

Balance at December 312012

130 671575

99 23012

3641 3641

6616

115 115

2587

288066

Preferred Common Accumulated Other

Additional Distributions in Comprehensive Treasury Non Controlling

Shares Par Value Shares Par Value Paid-in Capital Excess of Net Income Loss Stock Interests Total Equity

Amounts in thousands except for per share data

78725 79 759721 88093 262

22913

700 6616

2587

30800 31 288035

83350 83350

110225 110 1051785 148530 3641 262 114 899576

26536 178 26714

8590 8590
561 6982 6983

441 83 524

3070 2431 5501

209 209
89634 89634

110786 111 1055256 214059 12231 262 828815

8QQ00 177 90077

251 251
854 7636 7637

177 177

4b9b 24 233024 233048

109335
_______________

109335

136335 136 1295916 233494 12482 262 1049814
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MEDICAL PROPERTIES TRUST INC AND SUBsIDIARIEs

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Operating activities

Net income

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities

Depreciation and amortization

Amortization and write-off of deferred financing costs and debt discount

Premium on extinguishment of debt

Direct financing lease accretion

Straight line rent revenue

Share based compensation expense

Impairment charge

Gain loss from sale of real estate

Provision for uncollectible receivables and loans

Straight line rent write off

Payment of discount on extinguishment of debt

Other adjustments

Decrease increase in

Interest and rent receivable

Other assets

Accounts payable and accrued expenses

Deferred revenue

Net cash provided by operating activities

Investing activities

Cash paid for acquisitions and other related investments

Net proceeds from sale of real estate

Principal received on loans receivable

Investment in loans receivable

Construction in progress

Other investments net

Net cash used for provided by investing activities

For the Years Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010

Amounts in thousands

90077 26714 23012

621490 278963 137808

71202 41130 97669

10931 4289 90486

1293 861 11637

44570 22999 6638

31908 8217 9291

617128 265621 22781

35477

9289

13091

7142

6983

564

5431

1499

2470

4850

1058

26312

6110

3833

4932

6616

12000

10566

2400

3694

7324

30

35593

3457

3104

8309

7.637

16369

6456

538

17261

91

9201

2698

105309

6118 5490

142 566

5354 3177

170 8745

79270 60637
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MEDICAL PROPERTIES TRUST INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS CONTINUED

Financing activities

Additions to term debt

Payments of term debt

Payment of deferred financing costs

Revolving credit facilities net

Distributions paid

Lease deposits and other obligations to tenants

Proceeds from sale of common shares net of offering costs

Other

Net cash provided by used in financing activities

Increase decrease in cash and cash equivalents for the year

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

Interest paid including capitalized interest of $1596 in 2012 $896 in 2011 and $63 in 2010

Supplemental schedule of non cash investing activities

Real estate acquired via assumption of mortgage loan

Loan conversion to equity interest

Mortgage loan issued from sale of real estate

Supplemental schedule of non-cash financing activities

Assumption of mortgage loan as part of real estate acquired

Dividends declared not paid

232 246262 216765

6247 15454 6796

35400 89600 137200

103952 89601 77087

11436 8621 3667

233048 288066

1771 6235 2702

446404 190669 317

65415 4318 83101

102726 98408 15307

37311 102726 98408

51440 38463 29679

14592

For the Years Ended December 31

7012 2011 2010

Amounts in thousands

1648

3650

14592

27786 22407 22374

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements 37



MEDICAL PROPERTIES TRUST INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Organization

Medical Properties Trust Inc Maryland corporation was formed on August 27 2003 under the

General Corporation Law of Maryland for the purpose of engaging in the business of investing in owning

and leasing commercial real estate Our operating partnership subsidiary MPT Operating Partnership

L.P the Operating Partnership through which we conduct all of our operations was formed in

September 2003 Through another wholly owned subsidiary Medical Properties Trust LLC we are the

sole general partner of the Operating Partnership At present we directly own substantially all of the

limited partnership interests in the Operating Partnership MPT Finance Corporation is wholly owned

subsidiary of the Operating Partnership and was formed for the sole purpose of being co issuer of some

of the Operating Partnerships indebtedness MPT Finance Corporation has no substantive assets or

operations

Our primary business strategy is to acquire and develop real estate and improvements primarily furlong

term lease to providers of healthcare services such as operators of general acute care hospitals inpatient

physical rehabilitation hospitals long term acute care hospitals surgery centers centers for treatment of

specific conditions such as cardiac pulmonary cancer and neurological hospitals and other healthcare

oriented facilities We also make mortgage and other loans to operators of similar facilities In addition

we may obtain profits or equity interests in our tenants which we refer to as RIDEA investments from

time to time in order to enhance our overall return We manage ourbusiness as single business segment

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Use of Estimates The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles

generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and

assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets

and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses

during the reporting period Actual results could differ from those estimates

PrincpIes of Consolidation Property holding entities and other subsidiaries of which we own 100% of the

equity or have controlling financial interest evidenced by ownership of majority voting interest are

consolidated All inter-company balances and transactions are eliminated For entities in which we own

less than 100% of the equity interest we consolidate the property if we have the director indirect ability to

control the entities activities based upon the terms of the respective entities ownership agreements For

these entities we record non-controlling interest representing equity held by non controlling interests

We continually evaluate all of our transactions and investments to determine if they represent variable

interests in variable interest entity VIE If we determine that we have variable interest in VIE we

then evaluate if we are the primary beneficiary of the VIE The evaluation is qualitative assessment as

to whether we have the ability to direct the activities of VIE that most significantly impact the entitys

economic performance We consolidate each VIE in which we by virtue of or transactions with our

investments in the entity are considered to be the primary beneficiary

At December 31 2012 we had loans and/or equity investments in certain VIEs which are also tenants

of our facilities including but not limited to Ernest Monroe and Vibra We have determined that we

are not the primary beneficiary of these VIEs The carrying value and classification of the related assets

and maximum exposure to loss as result of our involvement with these VIEs are presented below at

December 312012 in thousands

Equity investments

Maximum Loss

Exposure1

$272454

Type

Classification Amount2

2231Mortgage and Other loans

18293 Other assets 5341

Our maximum loss exposure related to loans with VIEs represents our current aggregate gross carrying value of the loan

plus accrued interest and any other related assets such as rents receivable less any liabilities Our maximum loss exposure

related to our equity investment in VIEs represent the current carrying values of such investment plus any other related

assets such as rent receivables less any liabilities

Carrying amount reflects the net book value of our loan or equity interest only in the VIE

For the VIE types above we do not consolidate the VIE because we do not have the ability to control

the activities such as the day to-day healthcare operations of our borrowers or investees that most

significantly impact the VIEs economic performance As of December 31 2012 we were not required

to provide financial support through liquidity arrangement or otherwise to our unconsolidated VIEs

including circumstances in which it could be exposed to further losses e.g cash short falls

Typically our loans are collateralized by assets of the borrower some assets of which are on the premises

of facilities owned by us and further supported by limited guarantees made by certain principals of

the borrower

See Note for additional description of the nature purpose and activities of our more significant VIEs

and interests therein

Investments in Unconsolidated Entities Investments in entities in which we have the ability to influence

but not control are typically accounted for by the equity method Under the equity method of accounting

our share of the investees earnings or losses are included in our consolidated results of operations and

we have elected to record our share of such investees earnings or losses on 90 day lag basis The initial

carrying value of investments in unconsolidated entities is based on the amount paid to purchase the

interest in the investee entity To the extent that our cost basis is different from the basis reflected at the

VIE Type

Loans net
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investee entity level the basis difference is generally amortized over the lives of the related assets and

liabilities and such amortization is included in our share of equity in earnings of the investee We evaluate

our equity method investments for impairment based upon comparison of the fair value of the equity

method investment to its carrying value If we determine decline in the fair value of an investment in

an unconsolidated investee entity below its carrying value is other than temporary an impairment

is recorded

Cash and Cash Equivalents Certificates of deposit short-term investments with original maturities of

three months or less and money-market mutual funds are considered cash equivalents The majority of

our cash and cash equivalents are held at majorcommercial banks which at times may exceed the Federal

Deposit Insurance Corporation limit We have not experienced any losses to date on our invested cash

Cash and cash equivalents which have been restricted as to its use are recorded in other assets

Revenue Recognition We receive income from operating leases based on the fixed minimum required

rents base rents per the lease agreements Rent revenue from base rents is recorded on the straight line

method over the terms of the related lease agreements for new leases and the remaining terms of existing

leases for acquired properties The straight line method records the periodic average amount of base rent

earned over the term of lease taking into account contractual rent increases over the lease term The

straight line method typically has the effect of recording more rent revenue from lease than tenant

is required to pay early in the term of the lease During the later parts of lease term this effect reverses

with less rent revenue recorded than tenant is required to pay Rent revenue as recorded on the straight-

line method in the consolidated statements of income is presented as two amounts billed rent revenue

and straight line revenue Billed rent revenue is the amount of base rent actually billed to the customer

each period as required by the lease Straight line rent revenue is the difference between rent revenue

earned based on the straight line method and the amount recorded as billed rent revenue We record the

difference between base rent revenues earned and amounts due per the respective lease agreements as

applicable as an increase or decrease to straight line rent receivable

Certain leases provide for additional rents contingent upon percentage of the tenants revenue in excess

of specified base amounts thresholds percentage rents Percentage rents are recognized in the period

in which revenue thresholds are met Rental payments received prior to their recognition as income are

classified as deferred revenue We may also receive additional rent contingent rent under some leases

when the U.S Department of Labor consumer price index exceeds the annual minimum perLentage

increase in the lease Contingent rents are recorded as billed rent revenue in the period earned

We use direct finance lease accounting DFL to record rent on certain leases deemed to be financing

leases rather than operating leases For leases accounted for as DFLs the future minimum lease payments

are recorded as receivable Unearned income represents the net investment in the DFL less the sum

of minimum lease payments receivable and the estimated residual values of the leased properties

Unearned income is deferred and amortized to income over the lease terms to provide constant yield

when collectability of the lease payments is reasonably assured Investments in DFLs are presented net of

unamortized and unearned income

In instances where we have profits or equity interest in our tenants operations we record revenue equal

to our percentage interest of the tenants profits as defined in the lease or tenants operating agreements

once annual thresholds if any are met

We begin recording base rent income from our development projects when the lessee takes physical

possession of the facility which may be different from the stated start date of the lease Also during

construction of our development projects we are generally entitled to accrue rent based on the cost

paid during the construction period construction period rent We accrue construction period rent

as receivable and deferred revenue during the construction period When the lessee takes physical

possession of the facility we begin recognizing the accrued construction period rent on the straight line

method over the remaining term of the lease

We receive interest income from our tenants borrowers on mortgage loans working capital loans and

other long-term loans Interest income from these loans is recognized as earned based upon the principal

outstanding and termsof the loans

Commitment fees received from development and leasing services for lessees are initially recorded as

deferred revenue and recognized as income over the initial term of lease to produce constant effective

yield on the lease interest method Commitment and origination fees from lending services are also

recorded as deferred revenue and recognized as income over the life of the loan using the interest method

Tenant payments for certain taxes insurance and other operating expenses related to our facilities most

of which are paid directly by our tenants to the government or related vendor are recorded net of the

rptive cipense as getiet ally out leases ate tiipie jiet leases with terms requiring such expenses to

be paid by our tenants Failure on the part of our tenants to pay such expense or to pay late would result in

violation of the lease agreement which could lead to an event of default if not cured

Acquired Real Estate Purchase Price Allocation We allocate the purchase price of acquired properties

to net tangible and identified intangible assets acquired based on their fair values In making estimates

of faii values for purposes of allocating purchase prices of acquired real estate we utilize number of

sources from time to time including independent appraisals that may be obtained in connection with the

acquisition or financing of the respective property and other market data We also consider information

obtained about each property as result of our pre-acquisition due diligence marketing and leasing

activities in estimating the fair value of the tangible and intangible assets acquired

We record above market and below-market in place lease values if any for our facilities which are based

on the present value using an interest rate which reflects the risks associated with the leases acquired

39



of the difference between the contractual amounts to be paid pursuant to the in place leases and

iimanagements estimate of fair market lease rates for the corresponding in place leases measured over

period equal to the remaining non-cancelable term of the lease We amortize any resulting capitalized

above-market lease values as reduction of rental income over the remaining non-cancelable terms of

the respective leases We amortize any resulting capitalized below market lease values as an increase to

rental income over the initial term and any fixed rate renewal periods in the respective leases

We measure the aggregate value of other lease intangible assets acquired based on the difference between

the property valued with new or in place leases adjusted to market rental rates and ii the property

valued as if vacant Managements estimates of value are made using methods similar to those used by

independent appraisers e.g discounted cash flow analysis Factors considered by management in our

analysis include an estimate of carrying costs during hypothetical expected lease up periods considering

current market conditions and costs to execute similar leases We also consider information obtained

about each targeted facility as result of our pre acquisition due diligence marketing and leasing

activities in estimating the fair value of the intangible assets acquired In estimating carrying costs

management includes real estate taxes insurance and other operating expenses and estimates of lost

rentals at market rates during the expected lease up periods which we expect to be about six months

depending on specific local market conditions Management also estimates costs to execute similar leases

including leasing commissions legal costs and other related expenses to the extent that such costs are not

already incurred in connection with new lease origination as part of the transaction

Other intangible assets acquired may include customer relationship intangible values which are based on

managements evaluation of the specific characteristics of each prospective tenants lease and our overall

relationship with that tenant Characteristics to be considered by management in allocating these values

include the nature and extent of our existing business relationships with the tenant growth prospects for

developing new business with the tenant the tenants credit quality and expectations of lease renewals

including those existing under the terms of the lease agreement among other factors

We amortize the value of in place leases if any to expense over the initial term of the respective leases

The value of customer relationship intangibles is amortized to expense over the initial term and any

renewal periods in the respective leases but in no event will the amortization period for intangible assets

exceed the remainingdepreciable life of the building If lease is terminated the unamortized portion of

the in place lease value and cuatomer relationship intangibles are charged to expense

Real Estate andDepreciation Real estate consisting of land buildings and improvements are recorded at

cost Although typically paid by our tenants any expenditures for ordinary maintenance and repairs that

we pay are expensed to operations as incurred Significant renovations and improvements which improve

and or extend the useful life of the asset are capitalized and depreciated over their estimated useful lives

We record impairment losses on long-lived assets used in operations when events and circumstances

indicate that the assets might be impaired and the undiscounted cash flows estimated to be generated by

those assets including an estimated liquidation amount during the expected holding periods are less than

the carrying amounts of those assets Impairment losses are measured as the difference between carrying

value and fair value of assets For assets held for sale we cease recording depreciation expense and adjust

the assets value to the lower of its carrying value or fair value less cost of disposal Fair value is based on

estimated cash flows discounted at risk adjusted rate of interest We classii real estate assets as held for

sale when we have commenced an active program to sell the assets and in the opinion of management

it is probable the asset will be sold within the next 12 months We record the results of operations from

material property sales or planned sales which include real property loans and any receivables as

discontinued operations in the consolidated statements of income for all periods presented if we do

not have any continuing involvement with the property subsequent to its sale Results of discontinued

operations include interest expense from debt which specifically collateralizes the property sold or held

for sale

Construction in progress includes the cost of land the cost of construction of buildings improvements and

fixed equipment and costs for design and engineering Other costs such as interest legal property taxes

and corporate project supervision which can be directly associated with the project during construction

are also included in construction in progress We commence capitalization of costs associated with

development project when the development of the future asset is probable and activities necessary to get

the underlying property ready for its intended use have been initiated We stop the capitalization of costs

when the property is substantially complete and ready for its intended use

Depreciation is calculated on the straight line method over the weighted average useful lives of the related

real estate and other assets as follows

Buildings and improvements 37.4 years

Tenant lease intangibles 15.7 years

Leasehold improvements 21.9 years

Furniture equipment and other 9.5 years

Losses from Rent Receivables For all leases we continuously monitor the performance of our existing

tenants including but not limited to admission levels and surgery procedure volumes by type current

operating margins ratio of our tenants operating margins both to facility rent and to facility rent plus

other fixed costs trends in revenue and patient mix and the effect of evolving healthcare regulations on

tenants profitability
and liquidity

Losses from Operating Lease Receivables We utilize the information above along with the tenants

payment and default history in evaluating on property by property basis whether or not provision

for losses on outstanding rent receivables is needed provision for losses on rent receivables including

straight line rent receivables is ultimately recorded when it becomes probable that the receivable will

not be collected in full The provision is an amount which reduces the receivable to its estimated net
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realizable value based on determination of the eventual amounts to be collected either from the debtor

or from existing collateral if any

Losses on DFL Receivables Allowances are established for DFLs based upon an estimate of

probable losses for the individual DFLs deemed to be impaired DFLs are impaired when it is deemed

probable that we will be unable to collect all amounts due in accordance with the contractual terms of

the lease Like operating lease receivables the need for an allowance is based upon our assessment of the

lessees overall financial condition economic resources and payment record the prospects for support

from any financially responsible guarantors and if appropriate the realizable value of any collateral

These estimates consider all available evidence including the expected future cash flows discounted at

the DFLs effective interest rate fair value of collateral and other relevant factors as appropriate DFLs

are placed on non-accrual status when we determine that the collectability of contractual amounts is not

reasonably assured While on non accrual status we generally account for the DFLs on cash basis in

which income is recognized only upon receipt of cash

Loans Loans consist of mortgage loans working capital loans and other long term loans Mortgage loans

are collateralized by interests in real property Working capital and other long term loans are generally

collateralized by interests in receivables and corporate and individual guarantees We record loans at

cost We evaluate the collectability of both interest and principal on loan by-loan basis using the same

process as we do for assessing the collectability of rents to determine whether they are impaired loan is

considered impaired when based on current information and events it is probable that we will be unable

to collect all amounts due according to the existing contractual terms When loan is considered to be

impaired the amount of the allowance is calculated by comparing the recorded investment to either the

value determined by discounting the expected future cash flnws using the loans effective interest rate or

to the fair value of the collateral if the loan is collateral dependent When loan is deemed to be impaired

we generally place the loan on non accrual status and record interest income only upon receipt of cash

Earnings Per Share Basic earnings per common share is computed by dividing net income applicable

to common shares by the weighted number of shares of common stock outstanding during the period

Diluted earnings per common share is calculated by including the effect of dilutive securities

Certain of our unvested restricted and performance stock awards contain non-forfeitable rights to

dividends and accordingly these awards are deemed to be participating securities These participating

securities are included in the earnings allocation in computing both basic and diluted earnings per

common share

Income Taxes We conduct our business as real estate investment trust REIT under Sections 856

through 860 of the Internal Revenue Code To qualify as REIT we must meet certain organizational

and operational requirements including requirement to distribute to stockholders at least 90% of our

REITs ordinary taxable income As REIT we generally are not subject to federal income tax on taxable

income that we distribute to our stockholders If we fail to qualify as REIT in any taxable year we will

then be subject to federal income taxes on our taxable income at regular corporate rates and will not be

permitted to qualify for treatment as REIT for federal income tax purposes for four years following

the year during which qualification is lost unless the Internal Revenue Service grants us relief under

certain statutory provisions Such an event could materially adversely affect our net income and net cash

available for distribution to stockholders However we intend to operate in such manner so that we will

remain qualified as REIT for federal income tax purposes

Our financial statements include the operations of taxable REIT subsidiaries TRS including MPT

Development Services Inc MDS and MPT Covington TRS Inc CVT along with 25 others which

are single member LLCs that are disregarded for tax purposes and are reflected in the tax returns of

MDS Our TRS entities are not entitled to dividends paid deduction and are subject to federal state

and local income taxes Our TRS entities are authorized to provide property development leasing and

management services for third party owned properties and they make loans to and or investments in

our lessees

Given our income tax expense is typically not significant we record such expense along with related

penalties and interest if any in general and administrative expenses

Stock Based Compensation We currently sponsor the Second Amended and Restated Medical Properties

Trust Inc 2004 Equity Incentive Plan the Equity Incentive Plan that was established in 2004 Awards

of restricted stock stock options and other equity based awards with service conditions are amortized to

compensation expense over the vesting periods which generally range from three to seven years using

the straight line method Awards of deferred stock units vest when granted and are ehai ged to expense

at the date of grant Awards that contain market conditions are amortized to compensation expense over

the derived vesting periods which correspond to the periods over which we estimate the awards will be

earned which generally range from three to seven years using the straight line method Awards with

performance conditions arc amortized using the straight line method over the service period in which

the performance conditions are measured adjusted for the probability of achieving the performance

conditions

Deferred Costs Costs incurred prior to the completion of offerings of stock or other capital instruments

that directly relate to the offering are deferred and netted against proceeds received from the offering

External costs incurred in connection with anticipated financings and refinancings of debt are generally

capitalized as deferred financing costs in other assets and amortized over the lives of the related loans as

an addition to interest expense For debt with defined principal re-payment terms the deferred costs are

amortized to produce constant effective yield on the loan interest method For debt without defined

principal repayment terms such as revolving credit agreements the deferred costs are amortized on the

straight-line method over the term of the debt Leasing commissions and other leasing costs directly

attributable to tenant leases are capitalized as deferred leasing costs and amortized on the straight line
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method over the termsof the related lease agreements Costs identifiable with loans made to borrowers

are recognized as reduction in interest income over the life of the loan

Derivative Financial Investments and Hedging Activities During our normal course of business we may

use certain types of derivative instruments foi the purpose of managing interest rate risk We record

our derivative and hedging instruments at fair value on the balance sheet Changes in the estimated fair

value of derivative instruments that are not designated as hedges or that do not meet the criteria for

hedge accounting are recognized in earnings For derivatives designated as cash flow hedges the change

in the estimated fair value of the effective portion of the derivative is recognized in accumulated other

comprehensive income loss whereas the change in the estimated fair value of the ineffective portion is

recognized in earnings For derivatives designated as fair value hedges the change in the estimated fair

value of the effective portion of the derivatives offsets the change in the estimated fair value of the hedged

item whereas the change in the estimated fair value of the ineffective portion is recognized in earnings

To qualify for hedge accounting we formally document all relationships between hedging instruments

and hedged items as well as our risk management objective and strategy for undertaking the hedge

prior to entering into derivative transaction This process includes specific
identification of the

hedging instrument and the hedge transaction the nature of the risk being hedged and how the hedging

instruments effectiveness in hedging the exposure to the hedged transactions variability in cash flows

attributable to the hedged riskwill be assessed Both at the inception of the hedge and on an ongoing basis

we assess whether the derivatives that are used in hedging transactions are highly effective in offsetting

changes in cash flows or fair values of hedged items In addition for cash flow hedges we assess whether

the underlying forecasted transaction will occur We discontinue hedge accounting if derivative is not

determined to be highly effective as hedge or that is probable that the underlying forecasted transaction

will not occur

Exchangeable Senior Notes In 2008 we issued exchangeable senior notes that based upon the occurrence

of specified events are exchangeable for cash up to their principal amount and our common shares for the

remainder of the exchange value in excess if any of the principal amount The initial proceeds from the

issuance of the exchangeable senior notes are required to be allocated between liability component and

an equity component such that the interest expense on the exchangeable senior notes is not recorded at

the stated rate of interest but rather at an effective rate that reflects our borrowing rate on conventional

debt at the date of issuance We calculate the liability component of the exchangeable seninr nntes based

on the present value ofthe contractual cash flows discounted at comparable market rate for conventional

debt at the date of issuance The difference between the principal amount and the fair value of the liability

component is reported as discount on the exchangeable senior notes that is accreted as additional

interest expense from the issuance date through the contractual maturity date using the effective interest

method The liability component of the exchangeable senior notes is reported net of discounts on our

consolidated balance sheets We calculate the equity component of the exchangeable senior notes based

on the difference between the initial proceeds received from the issuance of the exchangeable senior

notes and the fair value of the liability component at the issuance date The equity component is included

in additional paid-in capital net of issuance costs on our consolidated balance sheets We allocate

issuance costs for exchangeable senior notes between the liability and the equity components based on

their relative values

Fair ValueMeasurementWe measure and disclose the estimated fairvalue of financial assets and liabilities

utilizing hierarchy of valuation techniques based on whether the inputs to fair value measurement

are considered to be observable or unobservable in marketplace Observable inputs reflect market

data obtained from independent sources while unobservable inputs reflect our market assumptions

This hierarchy requires the use of observable market data when available These inputs have created the

following fair value hierarchy

Level quoted prices for identical instruments in active markets

Level quoted prices for similar instruments in active markets quoted prices for identical or similar

instruments in markets that are not active and model derived valuations in which significant

inputs and significant value drivers are observable in active markets and

Level fair value measurements derived from valuation techniques in which one or more significant

inputs or significant value drivers are unobservable

We measure fair value using set of standardized procedures that are outlined herein for all assets

and liabilities which are required to be measured at their estimated fair value on either recurring or

non-recurring basis When available we utilize quoted market prices from an independent third party

source to determine fair value and classify such items in Level In some instances where market price

is available but the instrument is in an inactive or over the-counter market we consistently apply the

dealer market maker pricing estimate and classify the asset or liability
in Level

If quoted market prices or inputs are not available fair value measurements are based upon valuation

models that utilize current market or independently sourced market inputs such as interest rates option

volatilities credit spreads market capitalization rates etc Items valued using such internally generated

valuation techniques are classified according to the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value

measurement As result the asset or liability
could be classified in either Level or even though there

may be some significant inputs that are readily observable Internal fair value models and techniques used

by us include discounted cash flow and Monte Carlo valuation models We also consider our counterpartys

and own credit risk on derivatives and other liabilities measured at their estimated fair value

Fair Value Option Election Forour equity interest in Ernest and related loans as more fully described in

Note we have elected to account for these investments at fair value due to the size of the investments

and because we believe this method is more reflective of current values We have not made similar

election for other equity interest or loans made in or prior to 2012
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Recent Accounting Developments In January 2013 the Financial Accounting Standards Board FASB
issued Accounting Standards Update ASU No 2013 02 Reporting of Amounts Reclassfled Out of

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income ASU 2013 02 The amendments in this update require

an entity to provide information about the amounts reclassified from accumulated other comprehensive

income by component In addition an entity is required to present either on the face of the income

statement or in the notes significant amounts reclassified from accumulated other comprehensive

income by the net income line item We do not expect the adoption of ASU 2013-02 on January 12013 to

have an impact on its consolidated financial position or results of operations

In July 2012 the FASB issued ASU No.2012 02 Testing Indefinite Lived IntangibleAssetsfor Impairment

ASU 2012 02 The amendments in this update provide an entity with the option to make qualitative

assessment about the likelihood that an indefinite-lived intangible asset is impaired to determine whether

it should perform quantitative impairment test The adoption of ASU 2012-02 on January 2013 did

not have an impact on our consolidated financial position or results of operations

Reclassifications Certain reclassifications have been made to the consolidated financial statements to

conform to the 2012 consolidated financial statement presentation Assets sold or held for sale have been

reclassified to Real Estate Held for Sale on the consolidated balance sheets and related operating results

have been reclassified from continuing operations to discontinued operations see Note 11

Real Estate and Loans Receivable

Acquisitions

We acquired the following assets

Land

Buildings

Intangible lease assets subject to amortization weighted average

useful life 15.0 years in 2012 and 13.9 years in 2011

Net investments in direct financing leases

Mortgage loans

Other loans

Equity investments

Total assets acquired

Total liabilities assumed

Net assets acquired

2012 Activity

On February 29 2012 we made loans to and acquired assets from Ernest for combined purchase

price and investment of $396.5 million consisting of $200 million to purchase real estate assets first

mortgage loan of $100 million an acquisition loan for $93.2 million and an equity contribution of $3.3

million Ernest Transaction

Real Estate Acquisition and Mortgage Loan Financing

Pursuant to definitive real property asset purchase agreement the Purchase Agreement we acquired

from Ernest and certain of its subsidiaries portfolio of five rehabilitation facilities including ground

lease interest relating to community-based acute rehabilitation
facility in Wyoming ii seven long

term acute care facilities located in seven states and iii undeveloped land in Prvn TJtah cnllectively

the Acquired Facilities for an aggregate purchase price of $200 million subject to certain adjustments

The Acquired Facilities are leased to subsidiaries of Ernest pursuant to master lease agreement The

master lease agreement has 20 year term with three five-year extension options and provides for an

initial rental rate of 9% with consumer price-indexed increases limited to 2% floor and 5% ceiling

annually thereafter In addition we made Ernest $100 million loan secured by first mortgage interest

in four subsidiaries of Ernest which has terms similar to the leasing terms described above

Acquisition Loan and Equity Contribution

Through an affiliate of one of our TRSs we made investments of approximately $96.5 million in Ernest

Health Holdings LLC Ernest Holdings which is the owner of Ernest These investments which are

structured as $93.2 million loan and $3.3 million equity contribution generally provide that we will

receive preferential return of 15% of the loan amount and approximately 79% of the remainingearnings

of Ernest Ernest is required to pay us minimum of 6% and 7% of the loan amount in years one and two

respectively and 10% thereafter although there are provisions in the loan agreement that are expected

to result in full payment of the 15% preference when funds are sufficient Any of the 15% in excess of the

minimum that is not paid will be accrued and paid upon the occurrence of capital or liquidity event and

is payable at maturity The loan may be prepaid without penalty at any time

OnJuly3 2012 we funded $100 million mortgage loan secured by the real property of Centinela Hospital

Medical Center Centinela is 369 bed acute care facility that is operated by Prime This mortgage loan is

cross defaulted with other mortgage loans to Prime and certain master lease agreements The initial term

of this mortgage loan runs through 2022

On September 19 2012 we acquired the real estate of the 380 bed St Marys Regional Medical Center

an acute care hospital in Reno Nevada for $80 million and the real estate of the 140 bed Roxborough

Memorial Hospital in Pennsylvania for $30 million The acquired facilities are leased to Prime pursuant

to master lease agreement which is more fully described below in the Leasing Operations section

On December14 2012 we acquired the real estate of 40 bed long term acute care hospital in Hammond
Louisiana for $10.5 million and leased the

facility to the operator under 15-year lease with three five

year extension options The rent escalates annually based on consumer price indexed increases As part

of this transaction we made secured working capital loan of $2.0 million as well as revolving loan of up

to $2.5 million In addition we made $2.0 million equity investment for 25% equity ownership in the

operator of this facility

2112 2011 2010

Amounts in thousands

518 19705 8227

8942 220769 119626

1040 20630 9955

310000

200000

95690 27283

5300 5168

621490 $293555 137808

14592

621490 $278963 137808
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Fromthe respective acquisition dates these 2012 acquisitions contributed $46.3 million and $46.1 million

of revenue and income excluding related acquisition expenses for the period ended December 31 2012

In addition we incurred $5.4 million of acquisition related expenses in 2012 of which $5.1 million related

to acquisitions consummated as of December 312012

2011 Activity

On January 2011 we acquired the real estate of the 19 bed year old Gilbert Hospital in suburb

of Phoenix Arizona area for $17.1 million Gilbert Hospital is operated by affiliates of Visionary Health

LLC the same group that operates our Florence Arizona facility We acquired this asset subject to an

existing lease that expires in May 2022 The lease contains three five-year extension options and the rent

escalates annually at 2.5%

On January 31 2011 we acquired for $23.5 million the real estate of the 60 bed Atrium Medical Center

at Corinth in the Dallas area long-term acute care hospital that was completed in 2009 and is subject

to lease that expires in June 2024 The lease has an initial term of 15 years contains two ten year

extension options and the rent escalates annually based on consumer price indexed increases and to be

not less than 1% or greater than 5% In addition through one of our affiliates we invested $1.3 million

to acquire approximately 19% of joint venture arrangement with an affiliate of Vibra Healthcare LLC

Vibra that will manage and has acquired 51% interest in the operations of the facility We also made

$5.2 million working capital loan to the joint venture The former operators of the hospital comprised

primarily of local physicians retained ownership of 49% of the operating entity

On February 2011 we purchased for $58 million the real estate of Bayonne Medical Center 6-story

278 bed acute care hospital in the New Jersey area of metropolitan New York and leased the facility
to

the operator under 15-year lease with six five-year extension options The rent escalates annually based

on consumer price indexed increases The operator is an affiliate of private hospital operating company

that acquired the hospital in 2008

On February 92011 we acquired the real estate of the 306 bed Alvarado Hospital in San Diego California

for $70 million from Prime Healthcare Services Inc Prime Prime is the operator of the facility

On February 14 2011 we completed the acquisition of the Northland LTACH Hospital located in Kansas

City 35-bed hospital that opened in April2008 and has lease that expires in 2028 The lease contains

three five year extension options and the rent increases annually at 2.75% This hospital is currently

being operated by Kindred Healthcare Inc The purchase price of this hospital was $19.5 million which

included the assumption of $15 million existing mortgage loan that matures in January2018

On July18 2011 we acquired the real estate of the 40 bed Vibra Specialty Hospital of DeSoto in Desoto

Texas for $13.0 million This long term acute care facility is leased to subsidiary of Vibra for fixed

term of 15 years with three five-year extension options Rent escalates annually based on consumer priced

indexed increases In addition we made $2.5 million equity investment in the operator of this facility for

25% equity ownership

On September 30 2011 we purchased the real estate of 40 bed long term acute care facility in New

Braunfels Texas for $10.0 million This facility is leased to an affiliate of Post Acute Medical LLC for

fixed term of 15 years with three five-year extension options Rent escalates annually based on consumer

priced indexed increases In addition we made $1.4 million equity investment for 25% equity

ownership in the operator of this facility
and funded $2.0 million working capital loan

On October 14 2011 we entered into agreements with ajoint venture of Emerus Holding Inc and Baptist

Health System to acquire provide for development funding and lease three acute care hospitals for

$30.0 million in the suburban markets of San Antonio Texas The three facilities are subject to master

lease structure with an initial term of 15 years and three five-year extension options Rent escalates

annually based on consumer priced indexed increases and to be not less than one percent or greater than

three percent See section titled Development Activities for update on the status of these properties

On November 2011 we made investments in Hoboken University Medical Center in Hoboken

New Jersey 350-bed acute care facility
The total investment for this transaction was $75.0 million

comprising $50.0 million for the acquisition of an 100% ownership of the real estate secured working

capital loan of up to $20.0 million $15.1 million outstanding at December 31 2012 and the purchase of

$5.0 million convertible note which provides us with the option to acquire up to 25% of the hospital

operator The lease with the tenant has an initial termof 15 years contains six five year extension options

and the rent escalates annually based on consumer price indexed increases

From the respective acquisition dates in 2011 through that year end these 2011 acquisitions contributed

$21.2 million of revenue and $14.1 million of income excluding related acquisition expenses In

addition we incurred $4.2 million in acquisition related expenses in 2011 of which $1.9 million related to

acquisitions consummated as of December 312011

2010 Activity

On June 17 2010 we acquired three inpatient rehabilitation hospitals in Texas for an aggregate purchase

price of $74 million The properties acquired had existing leases in place which we assumed that have

initial termc expiring in 2033 Each lease may subject to conditions be renewed by the operator for two

additional ten-year terms

In the fourth quarter of 2010 we acquired two long term acute care hospital facilities in Texas for an

aggregate purchase price of $64 million The properties acquired had existing leases in place which we

assumed The Triumph Hospital Clear Lake 110-bed facility that opened in 2005 is subject to lease

maturing in 2025 and can be renewed by the lessee for two five year terms Triumph Hospital Tomball

75-bed facility that opened in August 2006 is subject to lease that matures in 2026 and can be renewed

by the lessee for two five-year terms
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From the respective acquisition dates in 2010 through that year end these 2010 acquisitions contributed

$4.3 million of revenue and $3.4 million of income In addition we incurred approximately $2.0 million

in acquisition related expenses in 2010 of which approximately $1.1 million related to acquisitions

consummated as of December 312010

The results of operations for each of the properties acquired in 2012 and 2011 are included in our

consolidated results from the effective date of each acquisition The following table sets forth certain

unaudited pro forma consolidated financial data for 2012 and 2011 as ifeach acquisition was consummated

on the same terms at the beginning of 2011 and 2010 respectively Supplemental pro forma earnings were

adjusted to exclude $5.1 million and $1.9 million of acquisition-related costs on these consummated deals

incurred during 2012 and 2011 respectively dollar amounts in thousands except per share data

2012 2011

Total revenues 224796 213642

Net income 113450 81744

Net income per share 0.84 0.60

Development Activities

On December 20 2012 we entered into an agreement to finance the development of and lease an acute

care facility
in Altoona Wisconsin for $33.5 million which will be leased to an affiliate of National

Surgical Hospitals The facility is expected to be completed in the first quarter of 2014 We have funded

$0.3 million through the end of 2012

On October 2012 we agreed to fund the construction of an inpatient rehabilitation hospital in

Spartanburg South Carolina that will be operated by Ernest The estimated cost for the development is

$18 million and the construction is expected to be completed by the third quarter of 2013 We have funded

$3.7 million through the end of 2012

On June 13 2012 we entered into an agreement with Ernest to fund the development of and lease 40

bed rehabilitation hospital in Lafayette Indiana Total development cost is expected to be $16.6 million

and the facility is set to open in the 2013 first quarter We have funded $13.3 million through the end of

2012

On May 2012 we amended the current lease on our Victoria Texas facility with Post Acute Medical

to extend the current lease term to 2028 and we agreed to develop and lease 26 bed facility next to

the existing facility The facilities will be operated as separate LTACH and rehabilitation hospitals Total

development cost of the new facility is estimated to be $9.4 million and it is expected to be completed in

the third quarter of 2013 We have funded $1.9 million through the end of 2012

On March 2012 we received certificate of occupancy for our recently constructed Florence acute

care facility near Phoenix Arizona With this we started recognizing rent on this
facility

in March

2012 During the construction period we accrued and deferred rent based on the cost paid during the

construction period In March 2012 we began recognizing portion of the accrued construction period

rent along with interest on the unpaid amount This accrued construction period rent will be recognized

in our income statement and paid over the 25 year lease term Land and building costs associated with this

property approximates $30 million

On October 2012 we received certificate of occupancy for one of the Emerus facilities With this

we started recognizing and collecting rent in October 2012 Land and building costs associated with

this property approximate $7.6 million We expect the remaining facilities to be completed in the 2013

first quarter Estimated remaining total development costs for the remaining two facilities approximate

$3.7 million and $3.1 million Through the end of 2012 $8.1 million and $10.9 million have been funded

on those two properties

In regard to our Twelve Oaks facility re-development efforts continue however approximately 55% of

this facility became partially occupied as of February 202013

Disposals

On December 27 2012 we sold our Huntington Beach facility for $12.5 million resulting in gain of $1.9

million Due to this sale we wrote off $0.7 million of straight line rent receivable

During the third quarter of 2012 we entered into definitive agreement to sell the real estate of two

LTACH facilities Thornton and New Bedford to Vibra for total cash proceeds of $42 million The sale

of Thornton was completed on September 28 2012 resulting in gain of $8.4 million Due to this sale

we wrote off $1.6 million in straight line rent receivables The sale of New Bedford was completed on

October 222012 resulting in gain of $7.2 million Associated with this sale we wrote off $4.1 million in

straight-line rent receivables in the fourth quarter 2012

On August 212012 we sold our Denham Springs facility for $5.2 million resulting in again of $0.3 million

On June 152012 we sold the HealthSouth Rehabilitation Hospital of Fayetteville in Fayetteville Arkansas

for $16 million resulting in loss of $1.4 million In connection with this sale HealthSouth Corporation

agreed to extend the lease on our Wichita Kansas property which is now set to end in March 2022

On December 30 2011 we sold Sherman Oaks Hospital in Sherman Oaks California to Prime for $20.0

million resulting in gain of $3.1 million Due to this sale we wrote off $1.2 million in straight line rent

receivables

On December 30 2011 we sold Mountain View Regional Rehabilitation Hospital in Morgantown West

Virginia to HealthSouth Corporation for $21.1 million resulting in gain of $2.3 million
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In the fourth quarter 2010 we sold the real estate of our Montclair Hospital an acute care medical center

to Prime for proceeds of $20.0 million We realized gain on the sale of $2.2 million Due to this sale we

wrote off $1.0 million in straight line rent receivables

In October 2010 we sold the real estate of our Sharpstowii facility
in Houston Texas to third party for

net proceeds of $2.7 million resulting in gain of $0.7 million

In the second quarter 2010 we sold the real estate of our Inglewood Hospital 369-bed acute care

medical center located in Inglewood California to Prime Healthcare for $75 million resulting in gain

of approximately $6 million

In the fourth quarter of 2009 we sold the real estate asset of one acute care facility to Prime for proceeds

of $15.0 million and we realized gain on the sale of $0.3 million

For each of these disposals the operating results of these facilities for the current and all prior periods

have been included in discontinued operations and we have reclassified the related real estate to Real

Estate Held for Sale

ntangible Assets

At December 31 2012 and 2011 our intangible lease assets were $52.8 million $40.5 million net

of accumulated amortization and $51.2 million $42.5 million net of accumulated amortization

respectively

We recorded amortization expense related to intangible lease assets of $3.9 million $5.2 million and

$3.2 million in 2012 2011 and 2010 respectively and expect to recognize amortization expense from

existing lease intangible assets as follows amounts in thousands

For the Year Ended December 31

2013

2014

2015

2016

2017

As of December 312012 capitalized lease intangibles have weighted average remaining life of 14.1 years

Leasing Operations

All of our leases are accounted for as operating leases except we are accounting for the master lease of 12

Ernest facilities and our Roxborough and Reno facilities as DFLs The components of our net investment

in DFLs consisted of the following dollars in thousands

Minimum lease payments receivable

Estimated residual values

Less unearned income
_____________________

Net investment in direct financing leases
________________________

Minimum rental payments due to us in future periods under operating leases and DFL which have non-

cancelable terms extending beyond one year at December31 2012 are as follows amounts in thousands

Total Under

Operating Leases Total Under DFL Total

119602 30071 149673

118150 30672 148822

115535 31285 146820

115976 31911 147887

115523 32549 148072

81128 393545 12u5u73

1396314 550033 1946347

On July 2012 we entered into master lease agreements with certain subsidiaries of Prime which

replaced the then current leases with the same tenants covering the same properties The master leases are

for 10 years and contain two renewal options of five years each The initial lease rate is generally consistent

with the blended average rate of the prior lease agreements However the annual escalators which in the

prior leases were limited have been increased to reflect 100% of consumer price index increases along

with minimum floor The master leases include repurchase options substantially similar to those in the

prior leases including provisions establishing minimum repurchase prices equal to our total investment

In the 2011 fourth quarter we consented to the sale by Vibra of its Dallas LTACH for which we own

the real estate to an affiliate of LifeCare Reit Inc LifeCare and LifeCare executed restated lease

agreement As result of this transaction we wrote off the related straight line rent receivables of $1.3

million and accelerated the amortization of the related lease intangibles resulting in $0.6 million of

expense in the 2011 fourth quarter

In September 2010 we exchanged properties with one of our tenants In exchange for our acute care

facility in Cleveland Texas we received similar acute care facility in Hillsboro Texas The lease that was

in place on our Cleveland facility was carried over to the new facility with no change iii lease term or lease

rate This exchange was accounted for at fair value resulting in gain of $1.3 million net of $0.2 million

from the write off of straight line rent receivables

In March 2010 were leased our Covington facility The lease has fixed term of 15 years with an option at

the lessees discretion to extend the term for three additional periods of five years each Rent during 2010

was based on an annual rate of $1.4 million and commencing on January 2011 increases annually by

2%At the end of each term the tenant has the right to purchase the facility at price generally equivalent

As of December 312012

1277923

201283

1164794

314412

2013

2014

2015

2016

2017

Thereafter

$3351

3286

3097

3055

3046



to the greater of our undepreciated cost and fair market value Separately we also obtained an interest in

the operations of the tenant whereby we may receive additional consideration based on the profitability

of such operations

In January 2009 the then operator of our Bucks County facility gave notice of its intentions to close the

facility Although we were able to re lease the facility in July 2009 we were owed outstanding rent from

the previous owner In the 2010 fourth quarter we agreed to settle our $3.8 million claim of unpaid rent

for $1.4 million resulting in $2.4 million charge to earnings

In the 2010 second quarter Prime paid us $12 million in additional rent related to our Redding property

Of this $12 million in additional rent $5.0 million has been recognized in income from lease inception

through December 31 2012 including $1.2 million in each of 2012 2011 and 2010 and we expect to

recognize the remaining $7.0 million into income over the remainder of the initial lease term

Monroe Facility

As of December 31 2012 we have advanced $29.9 million to the operator lessee of Monroe Hospital in

Bloomington Indiana pursuant to working capital loan agreement including $1.3 million in advances

during 2012 In addition as of December 31 2012 we have $20.1 million of rent interest and other

charges owed to us by the operator of which $5.8 million of interest receivables are significantly more

than 90 days past due Because the operator has not made all payments required by the working capital

loan agreement and the related real estate lease agreement we consider the loan to be impaired During

2010 we recorded $12 million impairment charge on the working capital loan and recorded valuation

allowance for unbilled straight-line rent in the amount of $2.5 million We have not recognized any

interest income on the Monroe loan since it was considered impaired and have not recorded any unbilled

rent since 2010

At December 31 2012 our net investment exclusive of the related real estate of approximately $38

million is ourmaximum exposure to Monroe and the amount is deemed collectible recoverable In making

this determination we considered our first priority secured interest in approximately $5 million in

hospital patient receivables ii cash balances of approximately $0.4 million iii our assessment of the

realizable value of our other collateral and iv continued improvement in operational revenue statistics

compared to previous years However no assurances can be made that we will not have additional charges

for further impairment of our working capital loan in the future

On September 2012 Monroe Hospital entered into four year agreement with St Vincent Health

Inc whereby St Vincent will manage the operations of the hospital At the same time we agreed with St

Vincent to exclusively negotiate the termsof possible sale or lease of the hospital real estate by the end of

such four year term St Vincent is member of Ascension Health the largest Catholic health care system

in the country However there is no assurance that we will reach satisfactory agreement with St.Vincent

and St Vincent has certain rights to terminate the management agreement during the four year term

Loans

The following is summary of our loans dollar amounts in thousands

As of December 312012 As of December 312011

Weighted Average Weighted Average

Balance Interest Rate Balance Interest Rate

Mortgage loans 368650 10.0% 165000 10.2%

Other loans 159243 13.2% 74839 10.5%

527893 239839

Our mortgage loans cover of our properties with three operators The increase from 2011 is primarily

related to the $100 million loan to Ernest and $100 million to Prime for the Centinela property

Including our working capital loans to Monroe our other loans typically consist of loans to our tenants

for acquisitions and working capital purposes Our $93.2 million acquisition loan with Ernest and our

Hobokeo convertible loan are also included in other loans

On March 2012 pursuant to our convertible note agreement we converted $1.6 million of our $5.0

million convertible note into 9.9% equity interest in the operator of our Hoboken University Medical

Center facility At December 31 2012 $3.4 million remains outstanding on the convertible note and we

retain the option through November 2014 to convert this remainder into an additional 15.1% equity

interest in the operator

Concentration of Credit Risks

For the year ended December 31 2012 revenue from affiliates of Ernest including rent and interest from

mortgage and acquisition loans accounted for 18.6% of total revenue From an investment concentration

perspective Ernest represented 18.2% of our total assets at December 31 2012

For the years ended December 31 2012 and 2011 revenue from affiliates of Prime including rent and

interest from mortgage loans accounted for 27.3% and 30.8% respectively of total revenue From

an investment concentration perspective Prime represented 27.9% and 25.3% of our total assets at

December 31 2012 and December 312011 respectively

On an individual property basis we had no investment of any single property greater than 5% of our total

assets as of December 312012

From geographic perspective all of our properties are located in the United States with 24.0% of our

total assets at December 31 2012 located in California

Related Party Transactions

Lease and interest revenue earned from tenants in which we have an equity interest in were $54.3 million

$5.5 million and $1.8 million in 2012 2011 and 2010 respectively
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Debt

The following is summary of debt dollar amounts in thousands

As of December 312012

Balance Interest Rate

Revolving credit facilities 125000 Variable

2006 Senior Unsecured Notes 125000 Various

2011 Senior Unsecured Notes 450000 6.875%

2012 Senior Unsecured Notes 200000 6.375%

Exchangeable senior notes

Principal amount 11000 9.250%

Unamortized discount 37
10963

Term loans 114197 Various

1025160

As of December 31 2012 principal payments due on our debt which exclude the effects of any discounts

recorded are as follows

2013 11249

2014 265

2015 125283

2016 225299

2017 320

Thereafter 662781

Total 1025197

To help fund the 2012 acquisitions disclosed in Note on February 172012 we completed $200 million

offering of senior unsecured notes 2012 Senior Unsecured Notes resulting in net proceeds after

underwriting discount of $196.5 million These 2012 senior unsecured notes accrue interest at fixed

rate of 6.375% per year and mature on February 15 2022 The 2012 Senior Unsecured Notes include

covenants substantially consistent with our 2011 Senior Unsecured Notes In addition on March 2012

we closed on $100 million senior unsecured term loan facility 2012 Term Loan

In April 2011 our Operating Partnership and wholly owned subsidiary of our Operating Partnership

closed on an offering of $450 million unsecured senior notes 2011 Senior Unsecured Notes and used

proceeds for general corporate purposes including paying off shorter term debt In the 2011 third quarter

we used proceeds from our 2011 senior unsecured notes offering to repurchase 86.6% of the outstanding

9.25% exchangeable senior notes due 2013 at weighted average price of 118.4% of the principal amount

or $84.1 millionplus accrued and unpaid interest pursuant to cash tender offer In connection with

these 2011 refinancing activities we recognized charges of $14.2 million related to the write off of

previously deferred loan costs and discounts associated with the payoff of the debt instruments noted

above

In June 2007 we signed collateralized revolving bank credit facility for up to $42 million The terms

were for five years with interest at the 30 day LIBOR plus 1.50% 1.80% at December 31 2011 This

facility had an outstanding balance of $39.6 million at December 31 2011 and the facility expired in June

2012 At December 31 2011 we had $0 million of availability under this revolving credit facility The

weighted average interest rate on this revolving bank credit facility was 1.8% and 1.6% for 2012 and 2011

respectively

2012 Senior Unsecured Notes

On February 17 2012 we completed $200 million offering of senior unsecured notes 2012 Senior

Unsecured Notes resulting in net proceeds after underwriting discount of $196.5 million These 2012

senior unsecured notes accrue interest at fixed rate of o.375% per year and mature on February 15

2022 Interest on these notes is payable semi annually on February 15 and August 15 of each year We

may redeem some or all of the 2012 Senior Unsecured Notes at any time prior to February 15 2017 at

make-whole redemption price On or after February 15 2017 we may redeem some or all of the 2012

Senior Unsecured Notes at premium that will decrease over time plus accrued and unpaid interest to

but not including the redemption date The 2012 Senior Unsecured Notes are guaranteed jointly and

severally on an unsecured basis by certain subsidiary guarantors In the event of Change of Control

each holder of the 2012 senior unsecured notes may require us to repurchase some or all of its 2012 senior

unsecured notes at repurchase price equal to 101% of the aggregate principal amount plus accrued and

unpaid interest to the date of purchase

2011 Senior Unsecured Notes

On April 262011 our Operating Partnership and wholly owned subsidiary of our Operating Partnership

closed on private placement of $450 million aggregate principal amount of 6.875% Senior Notes due

2021 the 2011 Senior Unsecured Notes to qualified institutional buyers in reliance on Rule 144A under

the Securities Act The 2011 Senior Unsecured Notes were subsequently registered under the Securities

As of December 312011

Balance Interest Rate

89600 Variable

125000 Various

450000 6.875%

11000 9.250%

180

10820

14429 6.200%

689849

Revolving Credit Facilities

In March 2012 we exercised the $70 million accordion feature on our unsecured revolving credit facility

increasing the capacity from $330 million to $400 million The unsecured revolving credit facility

matures in October 2015 The interest rate is the higher of the prime rate or federal funds rate plus

0.5% plus spread initially set at 1.60% but that is adjustable from 1.æO% to 2.4O1i haced on current

total leverage or LIBOR plus spread initially set at 2.60% but that is adjustable from 2.60% to

3.40% based on current total leverage Interest rate spread was 2.85% at December 31 2012 and 2011 In

addition to interest expense we are required to pay quarterly commitment fee on the undrawn portion

of the revolving credit facility ranging from 0.375% to 0.500% per year At December 31 2012 and 2011

our outstanding balance on the revolving credit facility was $125 million and $50 million respectively

At December 31 2012 our availability under our revolving credit facility was $275 million The weighted

average interest rate on this facility was 3.2% for 2012 and 2011 respectively
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Act pursuant to an exchange offer Interest on the 2011 Senior Unsecured Notes is payable semi annually

on May and November of each year The 2011 Senior Unsecured Notes pay interest in cash at rate of

6.875% per year and mature on May 2021 We may redeem some or all of the 2011 Senior Unsecured

Notes at any time prior to May 2016 at make whole redemption price On or after May 2016 we

may redeem some or all of the 2011 Senior Unsecured Notes at premium that will decrease over time

plus accrued and unpaid interest to but not including the redemption date The 2011 Senior Unsecured

Notes are guaranteed jointly and severally on an unsecured basis by the certain subsidiary guarantors

In the event of Change of Control each holder of the 2011 Senior Unsecured Notes may require us to

repurchase some or all of its 2011 Senior Unsecured Notes at repurchase price equal to 101% of the

aggregate principal amount plus accrued and unpaid interest to the date of purchase

2006 Senior Unsecured Notes

During 2006 we issued $125.0 million of Senior Unsecured Notes the 2006 Senior Unsecured Notes

The 2006 Senior Unsecured Notes were placed in private transactions exempt from registration under the

Securities Act of 1933 as amended the Securities Act One of the issuances of 2006 Senior Unsecured

Notes totaling $65.0 million paid interest quarterly at fixed annual rate of 7.871% through July 302011

thereafter at floating annual rate of three-month LIBOR plus 2.30% and can be called at par value by

us at any time This portion of the 2006 Senior Unsecured Notes matures in July 2016 The remaining

issuances of Senior Unsecured Notes paid interest quarterly at fixed annual rates ranging from 7.333% to

7.715% through October 30 2011 thereafter at floating annual rate of three month LIBOR plus 2.30%

and can also called at par value by us at anytime These remainingnotes mature in October 2016

During the second quarter 2010 we entered into an interest rate swap to manage our exposure to variable

interest rates by fixing $6 millinn of our 1125 million Senior Notes which started July 31 2011 date

on which the interest rate turned variable through maturity date or July 2016 at rate of 5.507% We

also entered into an interest rate swap to fix $60 million of 2006 Senior Unsecured Notes which started

October 31 2011 date on which the related interest rate turned variable through the maturity date or

October 2016 at rate of 5.675% At December 312012 and 2011 the fairvalue of the interest rate swaps

was $12.5 million and $12.2 million respectively which is reflected in accounts payable and accrued

expenses on the consolidated balance sheets

We account for our interest rate swaps as cash flow hedges Accordingly the effective portion of changes

in the fair value of our swaps is recorded as component of accumulated other comprehensive income

loss on the balance sheet and reclassified into earnings in the same period or periods during which

the hedged transactions effects earnings while any ineffective portion is recorded through earnings

immediately We did not have any hedge ineffectiveness from inception of our interest rate swaps through

December 31 2012 and therefore there was no income statement effect recorded during the years ended

December 31 2012 2011 and 2010 We do not expect any of the current losses included in accumulated

other comprehensive loss to be reclassified into earnings in the next 12 months

As noted above under the heading Revolving Credit Facilities our revolving credit facility went

unsecured as of the end of June 2011 This change triggered collateral posting event under our interest

rate swap At December 31 2012 and 2011 we have posted $6.6 million and $6.3 million of collateral

respectively which is reflected in other assets on our consolidated balance sheets

Exchangeable Senior Notes

In March 2008 our Operating Partnership issued and sold in private offering $75.0 million of

Exchangeable Senior Notes the 2008 Exchangeable Notes and received proceeds of $72.8 million In

April 2008 the Operating Partnership sold an additional $7.0 million of the 2008 Exchangeable Notes

under the initial purchasers overallotment option and received proceeds of $6.8 million The 2008

Exchangeable Notes pay interest semi annually at rate of 9.25% per annum and mature on April

2013 The 2008 Exchangeable Notes have an initial exchange rate of 80.8898 shares of our common stock

per $1000 principal amount representing an exchange price of $12.36 per common share The initial

exchange rate is subject to adjustment under certain circumstances The 2008 Exchangeable Notes are

exchangeable prior to the close of business on the second day immediately preceding the stated maturity

date at any time beginning on January 2013 and also upon the occurrence of specified events for cash

up to their principal amounts and our common shares for the remainder of the exchange value in excess

of the principal amount The 2008 Exchangeable Notes are senior unsecured obligations of the Operating

Partnership guaranteed by us

In July 2011 we used portion of the proceeds from the 2011 senior unsecured notes to repurchase

85% of the outstanding 2008 Exchangeable Notes at price of 118.5% of the principal amount plus

accrued and unpaid interest or $84.2 million pursuant to cash tender offer Additionally in August

2011 we repurchased $1.5 million of the outstanding 2008 Exchangeable Notes in the open market

The outstanding aggregate principal amount of the 2008 Exchangeable Notes is $11.0 million as of

December 31 2012

Term Loans

As noted previously we closed on the 2012 Term Loan for $100 million on March 2012 2012 Term

Loan The 2012 Term Loan facility has an interest rate option of LIBOR plus an initial spread of

2.25% or the higher of the prime rate federal funds rate plus 0.5% or Eurodollar rate plus 1.0% plus

an initial spread of 1.25% The interest rate in effect at December 31 2002 was 2.47% The 2012 Term

Loan
facility is scheduled to mature on March 2016 but we have the option to extend the facility one

year to March 92017

In connection with our acquisition of the Northland LTACH Hospital on February 142011 we assumed

$14.6 million mortgage The Northland mortgage loan requires monthly principal and interest payments

based on 30 year amortization period The Northland mortgage loan has fixed interest rate of 6.2%

matures on January 2018 and can be prepaid after January 2013 subject to certain prepayment
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premium At December 31 2012 the remaining balance on this term loan was $14.2 million The loan

was collateralized by one real estate property with net book value of $17.2 million and $17.6 million at

December 312012 and 2011 respectively

Covenants

Our debt facilities impose certain restrictions on us including restrictions on our ability to incur debts

create or incur liens provide guarantees in respect of obligations of any other entity make redemptions

and repurchases of our capital stock prepay redeem or repurchase debt engage in mergers or

consolidations enter into affiliated transactions dispose of real estate or other assets and change our

business In addition the credit agreements governing our revolving credit facility and 2012 Term Loan

limit the amount of dividends we can pay as percentage of normalized adjusted funds from operations

as defined in the agreements on rolling four quarter basis Through the year ending December 31 2012

the dividend restriction was 105% of normalized adjusted FF0 Thereafter similar dividend restriction

exists but the percentage drops each quarter until reaching 95% at June 30 2013 and thereafter The

indentures governing our 2011 and 2012 Senior Unsecured Notes also limit the amount of dividends

we can pay based on the sum of 95% of funds from operations proceeds of equity issuances and certain

other net cash proceeds Finally our 2011 and 2012 Senior Unsecured Notes require us to maintain

total unencumbered assets as defined in the related indenture of not less than 150% of our unsecured

indebtedness

In addition to these restrictions the revolving credit facility and 2012 Term Loan contain customary

financial and operating covenants including covenants relating to our total leverage ratio fixed charge

coverage ratio mortgage secured leverage ratio recourse mortgage secured leverage ratio consolidated

adjusted net worth facility leverage ratio and unsecured interest coverage ratio This facility also contains

customary events of default including among others nonpayment of principal or interest material

inaccuracy of representations and failure to comply with our covenants If an event of default occurs and

is continuing under the facility
the entire outstanding balance may become immediately due and payable

At December 31 2012 we were in compliance with all such financial and operating covenants

Income Taxes

We have maintained and intend to maintain our election as REIT under the Internal Revenue Code

of 1986 as amended To qualify as REIT we must meet number of organizational and operational

requirements including requirement to distribute at least Qfl5 of our taxable income to our

stockholders As REIT we generally will not be subject to federal income tax if we distribute 100% of

our taxable income to our stockholders and satisfy certain other requirements Income tax is paid directly

by our stockholders on the dividends distributed to them If our taxable income exceeds our dividends in

tax year REIT tax rules allow us to designate dividends from the subsequent tax year in order to avoid

current taxation on undistributed income If we fail to qualify as REIT in any taxable year we will be

subject to federal income taxes at regular corporate rates including any applicable alternative minimum

tax Taxable income from non REIT activities managed through our taxable REIT subsidiaries is subject

to applicable federal state and local income taxes For 2012 2011 and 2010 we recorded tax expense of

$0.1 million $0.1 million and $1.6 million respectively

At December 31 2012 and 2011 we had net deferred tax asset prior to valuation allowance of

$8.5 million and $8.7 million respectively This net deferred tax asset was partially generated by federal

and state net operating loss carry forwards NOLs at our MDS TRS At December 31 2012 we had

U.S federal and state NOLs of $10.6 million and $10.8 million respectively that expire in 2020 through

2031

Based on the historical losses and without consideration of future new sources of profitability there is

insufficient evidence at present that MDS will generate enough taxable income to use the federal and state

net operating losses noted above within the carry forward period specified bylaw Therefore we continue

to fully reserve for the net deferred tax asset At December 31 2012 and 2011 the valuation allowance

was $8.5 million and $8.9 million respectively We will continue to monitor this valuation allowance and

if circumstances change such as entering into new working capital loans equity investments or other

transactions we will adjust this valuation allowance accordingly

Earnings and profits which determine the taxability of distributions to stockholders will differ from net

income reported for financial reporting purposes due primarily to differences in cost basis differences in

the estimated useful lives used to compute depreciation and differences between the allocation of our net

income and loss for financial reporting purposes and for tax reporting purposes

schedule of per share distributions we paid and reported to our stockholders is set forth in the following

For the Years Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010

0.800000 0.800000 0.800000

0.601216 0.300844 0.388128

0.117584 0.031396 0.027724

0.086976 0.031396 0.022784

0.081200 0.467760 0.384148

Common share distribution

Ordinary income

Capital gainsW

Unrecaptured Sec 1250 gain

Return of capital

Allocable to next year

1Cap ital gains include unrecaptured Sec 1250 gains
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Earnings Per Share

Our earnings per share were calculated based on the following amounts in thousands

For the Years Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010

Numerator

Income from continuing operations 75393 14519 3029

Non controlling interests share in continuing

operations 177 178 99
Participating securities share in earnings 886 1090 1254

Income from continuing operations less

participating securities share in earnings 74330 13251 1676

Income from discontinued operations

attributable to MPT common stockholders 14684 12195 19983

Net income less participating securities share

in earnings 89014 25446 21659

Denominator

Basic weighted-average common shares 132331 110623 100706

Dilutive stock options

Diluted weighted average common shares 132333 110629 100708

For each of the years ended December 31 2012 2011 and 2010 approximately 0.1 million of options

were excluded from the diluted earnings per share calculation as they were not determined to be dilutive

Shares that maybe issued in the future in accordance with our exchangeable senior notes were excluded

from the diluted earnings per share calculation as they were not determined to be dilutive

Stock Awards

We have adopted the Second Amended and Restated Medical Properties Trust Inc 2004 Equity

Incentive Plan the Equity Incentive Plan which authorizes the issuance of common stock options

restricted stock restricted stock units deferred stock units stock appreciation rights performance units

and awards of intcrcsts in our Operating Partnership The Equity Incentive Plan is administered by the

Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors We have reserved Z441180 shares of common stock

for awards under the Equity Incentive Plan for which 1489812 shares remain available for future stock

awards as of December 31 2012 The Equity Incentive Plan contains limit of 1000000 shares as the

maximum number of shares of common stock that may be awarded to an individual in any fiscal year

Awards under the Equity Incentive Plan are subject to forfeiture due to termination of employment prior

to vesting In the event 0f change in control outstanding and unvested options will immediately vest

unless otherwise provided in the participants award or employment agreement and restricted stock

restricted stock units deferred stock units and other stock based awards will vest if so provided in the

participants award agreement The term of the awards is set by the Compensation Committee though

Incentive Stock Options may not have terms of more than ten years Forfeited awards are returned to the

Equity Incentive Plan and are then available to be re issued as future awards For each share of common

stock issued by Medical Properties Trust Inc pursuant to its Equity Incentive Plan the Operating

Partnership issues corresponding number of operating partnership units

The following awards have been granted pursuant to our Equity Incentive Plan

Stock Options

At December 31 2012 we had 60000 options outstanding and exercisable with weighted average

exercise price of $10.00 per option The intrinsic value of options exercisable and outstanding at

December 31 2012 is $-0- In 2012 50000 options forfeited and 20000 options were settled for cash

in 2011 No options were granted or exercised in 2012 2011 or 2010 The weighted average remaining

contractual term of options exercisable and outstanding is 1.6 years

Restricted Equity Awards

Other stock-based awards are in the form of service based awards and performance based awards The

service based awards vest as the employee provides the required service over periods that range from

three to seven years Service based awards are valued at the average price per share of common stock on the

date of grant In 2012 20112010 and 2007 the Compensation Committee granted awards to employees

which vest based on us achieving certain performance levels stock price levels total shareholder return or

comparisons to peer total return indices Generally dividends are not paid on these performance awards

until the award is earned See below for details of such grants

2012 performance awards The 2012 performance awards were granted in three parts

Approximately 30% of the 2012 performance awards are based on us achieving simple 9.0% annual

total shareholder return over three year period however the award contains both carry forward and

carry back provisions through December 31 2016 The fair value of this award was estimated on the date

of grant using Monte Carlo valuation model that assumed the following risk free interest rate of 0.93%

expected volatility of 34% expected dividend yield of 8.6% and expected service period of years

Approximately 35% of the 2012 performance awards are based on us achieving cumulative total

shareholder return from January 2012 to December 31 2014 The minimum total shareholder return

needed to earn portion of this award is 27% with 100% of the award earned if our total shareholder

return reaches 35% If any shares are earned from this award the shares will vest in equal annual amounts

on January 2015 2016 and 2017 The fair value of this award was estimated on the date of grant using

Monte Carlo valuation model that assumed the following risk free interest rate of 0.43% expected

volatility of 35% expected dividend yield of 8.6% and expected service period of years

The remainder of the 2012 performance awards will be earned if our total shareholder return

outpaces that of the MSCI U.S REIT Index Index over the cumulative period from January 2012

to December 31 2014 Our total shareholder return must exceed that of the Index to earn the minimum

number of shares under this award while it must exceed the Index by 6% to earn 100% of the award If any

shares are earned from this award the shares will vest in equal annual amounts on January 2015 2016

and 2017 The fair value of this award was estimated on the date of grant using Monte Carlo valuation

model that assumed the following risk free interest rate of 0.43% expected volatility
of 35% expected

dividend yield of 8.6% and expected service period of years
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There were 92094 of the 2012 performance awards earned in 2012 At December 31 2012 we have

804547 of 2012 performance awards remainingto be earned

2011 performance awards The 2011 performance awards were granted in three parts

Approximately 30% of the 2011 performance awards are based on us achieving simple O% annual

total shareholder return over three year period however the award contains both carry forward and

carry back provisions through December 31 2015 The fair value of this award was estimated on the date

of grant using Monte Carlo valuation model that assumed the following risk free interest rate of 2.07%

expected volatility of 33% expected dividend yield of 8.5% and expected service period of years

Approximately 18% of the 2011 performance awards are based on us achieving cumulative total

shareholder return from January 2011 to December 31 2013 The minimum total shareholder return

needed to earn portion of this award is 27% with 100% of the award earned if our total shareholder

return reaches 39% If any shares are earned from this award the shares will vest in equal annual amounts

on January 2014 2015 and 2016 The fair value of this award was estimated on the date of grant using

Monte Carlo valuation model that assumed the following risk free interest rate of 1.07% expected

volatility of 34% expected dividend yield of 8.5% and expected service period of years

The remainder of the 2011 performance awards will be earned if our total shareholder return outpaces

that of the Index over the cumulative period from January 2011 to December 31 2013 Our total

shareholder return must exceed that of the Index to earn the minimum number of shares under this

award while it must exceed the Index by 12% to earn 100% of the award If any shares are earned from

this award the shares will vest in equal annual amounts on January 2014 2015 and 2016 The fair value

of this award was estimated on the date of grant using Monte Carlo valuation model that assumed the

following risk free interest rate of 1.07% expected volatility of 34% expected dividend yield of 8.5% and

expected service period of years

There were 147256 of the 2011 performance awards earned in 2012 but none in 2011 At December 31

2012 we have 684851 of 2011 performance awards remaining to be earned

2010 performance awards The 2010 performance awards are based on us achieving simple 9.5% annual

total shareholder return over three year period however the award contains both carry forward and

carry hack provisions through December 31 2014 The fair value of this award was estimated on the date

of grant using Monte Carlo valuation model that assumed the following risk free interest rate of 2.60%

expected volatility of 42% expected dividend yield of 8.5% and expected service period of years There

were 60866 of the 2010 performance awards earned in 2010 with the remaining 121733 earned in 2012

Because these awards were earned and vested quicker than we had expected we were required to record

an additional $0.4 million of stock compensation expense in the 2012 fourth quarter

2007 performance awards The 2007 performance awards were granted under our 2007 Multi-year

Incentive Plan and consist of two components core performance awards CPRE and superior

performance awards SPRE The CPRE awards vest annually and ratably over seven year period

beginning December 31 2007 contingent upon our achievement of simple 9% annual total return to

shareholders prorated to 7.5% for the first vesting perind ending December l1 20O7 In years in which

the annual total return exceeds 9%the excess return may be used to earn CPRE awards not earned in

prior or future year SPRE awards were to be earned based on achievement of specified share price

thresholds during the period beginning March 2007 through December 31 2010 and were to vest

annually and ratably over the subsequent three year period 2011 2013 At December 31 2010 the share

price thresholds were not met Accordingly in accordance with the SPRE award agreements 33.334% of

the SPRE awards were earned as we performed at or above the 50th percentile of all real estate investment

trusts included in the Morgan Stanley REIT Index in terms of total return to shareholders over the same

period The other 66.666% of the SPRE awards were deemed forfeited

In 201279283 of the CPRE awards were earned but none in 2011 At December 312012 we have 317143

of CPRE awards remaining to be earned

The following summarizes restricted equity awards activity in 2012 and 2011 respectively

For the Year Ended December 31 2012

Vesting Based on Market

Vesting Based on Service Performance Conditions

Weighted Average Weighted Average

Shares Value at Award Date Shares Value at Award Date

Nonvested awards at

beginningoftheyear 603980 11.02 1511397 7.21

Awarded 275464 10.14 902359 5.16

Vested 410261 10.78 513693 8.62

Forfeited 2300 10.24 20174 4.59

Nonvested awards at end of year 466883 10.72 1879889 5.87

For the Year Ended December 312011

Vesting Based on Service

Weighted Average

Shares Value at Award Date

Vesting Based on Market

Performance Conditions

Weighted Average

Shares Value at Award Date

Nonvested awards at

beginning of the year 783305 10.43 828409 8.70

Awarded 292803 10.76 853656 5.72

Vested 453980 9.89 163575 6.87

Forfeited 18148 9.70 7093 9.32

Nonvested awards at end of year 603980 11.02 1511397 7.21
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The value of stock based awards is charged to compensation expense over the vesting periods In the

years ended December 31 2012 2011 and 2010 we recorded $7.6 million $7.0 million and $6.6 million

respectively of non-cash compensation expense The remaining unrecognized cost from restricted equity

awards at December 31 2012 is $10.1 million and will be recognized over weighted average period of

2.5 years Restricted equity awards which vested in 2012 2011 and 2010 had value of $9.2 million $6.1

million and $6.1 million respectively

Commitments and Contingencies

Commitments

Our operating leases primarily consist of ground leases on which certain of our facilities or other related

property reside along with corporate office and equipment leases These ground leases are long term

leases almost all having terms for approximately 50 years or more some contain escalation provisions

and one contains purchase option Properties subject to these ground leases are subleased to our

tenants Lease and rental expense which is recorded on the straight-line method for 2012 2011 and

2010 respectively were $2195835 $1994565 and $989170 which was offset by sublease rental income

of $492095 $443829 and $520090 for 20122011 and 2010 respectively

Fixed minimum payments due under operating leases with non cancelable terms of more than one year

at December 31 2012 are as follows amounts in thousands

2013

2014

2015

2016

2017

Thereafter
________

The total amount to be ieeei%ed iii the Mote fioni iinti cancellable sobleases at December 31 2012 ia

$35.5 million

Contingencies

We are party to various legal proceedings incidental to our business In the opinion of management

after consultation with legal counsel the ultimate liability if any with respect to those proceedings is not

presently expected to materially affect our financial position results of operations or cash flows

Common Stock

To help fund the 2012 acquisitions disclosed in Note on February 2012 we completed an offering of

23575000 shares of our common stock including 3075000 shares sold pursuant to the exercise in full

of the underwriters overallotment option at price of $9.75 per share resulting in net proceeds after

underwriting discount of $220.1 million

In April 2010 we completed public offering of 26 million shares of common stock at $9.75 per share

Including the underwriters purchase of 3.9 million additional shares to cover over allotments net

proceeds from the offering after underwriting discount and commissions were $279.1 million We used

the net proceeds from the offering to fund debt refinancing activities and for general corporate purposes

including funding acquisitions during 2010

In November 2009 we put an at the market equity offering program in place giving us the ability to sell

up to $50 million of stock During the first quarter of 2010 we sold 0.9 million shares of our common

stock under our at the market equity offering program at an average price of $10.77 per share for total

proceeds net of 2% sales commission of $9.5 million During the fourth quarter 2012 we sold 1.1 million

shares of our common stock under our at the market equity offering program at an average price of

$11.84 per share resulting in total proceeds net of 2% commission of $13.2 million

In February 2012 we filed Articles of Amendment to our charter with the Maryland State Department of

Assessments and Taxation increasing the number of authorized shares of common stock par value $0.001

per share available for issuance from 150000000 to 250000000

10 Fair Value of Financial Instruments

We have various assets and liabilities that are considered financial instruments We estimate that the

carrying value of cash and cash equivalents and accounts payable and accrued expenses approximate

their fair values Included in our accounts payable and accrued expenses are our interest rate swaps which

are recorded at fair value based on Level observable market assumptions using standardized derivative

pricing models We estimate the fair value of our interest and rent receivables in the table below using

Level inputs such as discounting the estimated future cash flows using the current rates at which similar

receivables would be made to others with similar credit ratings and for the same remaining maturities

The fair value of our mortgage loans and working capital loans in the following table is generally

estimated by using Level and Level inputs such as discounting the estimated future cash flows using

the current rates which similar loans would be made to borrowers with similar credit ratings and for the

same remaining maturities We determine the fair value of our exchangeable notes and 2011 and 2012

Senior Unsecured Notes in the table below using Level inputs such as quotes from securities dealers

and market makers Finally we estimate the fair value of our 2006 Senior Unsecured Notes revolving

credit facilities and term loans in the table below using Level inputs based on the present value of future

payments discounted at rate which we consider appropriate for such debt

Fair value estimates are made at specific point in time are subjective in nature and involve uncertainties

and matters of significant judgment Settlement of such fair value amounts may not be possible and may

not be prudent management decision The following table summarizes fair value estimates for our

financial instruments in thousands

2344

2119

2218

2233

2239

41799

52952
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December 31 2012 December 312011

Asset Liability
Book Value Fair Value Book Value Fair Value

Interestandrentreceivables 45289 36700 29862 22866

Loans1 334693 335595 239839 243272

Debt net 1025160 1082333 689849 688032

1Excludes loans related to Ernest Transactions since they are recorded at fair value and discussed below

Items Measured at Fair Value on Recurring Basis

As discussed in Note our equity interest in Ernest and related loans which were acquired in 2012 are

being measured at fair value on recurring basis as we elected to account for these investments using the

fair value option method At December 31 2012 these amounts were as follows in thousands

Asset Type

Asset Liability Fair Value Cost Classification

Mortgage loans 100000 100000 Mortgage loans

Acquisition loan 93200 93200 Other loans

Equity investments 3300 3300 Other assets

196500 196500

Our mortgage loans with Ernest are recorded at fair value based on Level inputs by discounting the

estimated cash flows using the current rates which similar loans would be made to borrowers with

similar credit ratings and the same remaining maturities Our acquisition loan and equity investments

are recorded at fair value based on Level inputs by using discounted cash flow model which requires

significant estimates of our investee such as projected revenue and expenses and appropriate discount

rates based on the risk profile of comparable companies We classity these loans and equity investments

as Level as we use certain unobservable inputs to the valuation methodology that are significant to the

fair value measurement and the valuation requires management judgment due to the absence of quoted

market prices For these cash flow models our observable inputs include capitalization rates and market

interest rates and our unobservable input includes our adjustment for marketability discount on our

equity investment of 40% at December 312012

Because the fair value of Ernest investments noted above approximate their original cost we did not

recognize any unrealized gains losses during 2012

11 Discontinued Operations

As more fully
discussed in Note under the heading Disposals we sold five properties in 2012 two

properties in 2011 and three properties in 2010 We have classified current and prior year activity related

to these transactions along with the related operating results of the facilities prior to these transactions

taking place as discontinued operations In addition we have reclassified the related real estate assets to

Real Estate Held for Sale in all prior periods

The following table presents the results of discontinued operations for the years ended December 31

2012 2011 and 2010 in thousands except per share amounts

For the Years Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010

Revenues 197 11369 17661

Gain on sale 16369 5431 10566

Income from discontinued operations 14684 12195 19983

Income from discontinued operations diluted per share 0.11 0.11 0.20

12 Quarterly Financial Data unaudited

As disclosed in Note 11 we sold properties during 2012 resulting in the reclassification of those properties

current and prior year results to discontinued operations The quarterly data presented below reflects

these reclassifications

The following is summary of the unaudited quarterly financial information for the years ended

December 31 2012 and 2011 amounts in thousands except for per share data

For the Three Month Periods in 2012 Ended

March31 June30 September30 December31

Revenues 41267 $49408 53315 57407

Income from continuing operations 8920 19358 23221 23894

Income from discontinued operations 1686 8287 4709

Net income 10606 19360 31508 28603

Net income attributable to MPT common

stockholders 10564 19316 31464 28556

Net income attributable to MPT common

stockholderspersliaie basic 0.08 0.14 0.23 0.21

Weighted average shares outstanding basic 124906 134715 134781 134923

Net income attributable to MPT common

stockholderspershare diluted 0.08 0.14 0.23 0.21

Weighted average shares outstanding diluted 124906 134715 134782 134930

For the Three Month Periods in 2011 Ended

March31 June30 September30 December31

Revenues 32009 34776 34282 34417

Income loss from continuing operations 7834 2559 2170 6296

Income from discontinued operations 2990 123 2638 6444

Net income 10824 2682 468 12740

Net income attributable to MPT common

stockholders 10780 2640 424 12692

Net income attributable to MPT common

stockholderspershare basic 0.09 0.02 0.11

Weighted average shares outstanding basic 110400 110589 110714 110788

Net income attributable to MPT common

stockholders per share diluted 0.09 0.02 0.11

Weighted average shares outstanding diluted 110408 110600 110719 110788
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13 Condensed Consolidating Financial Information

The following tables present the condensed consolidating financial information for Medical

Properties Trust Inc Parent and guarantor to oor 2011 and 2012 Senior Unsecured Notes MPT

Operating Partnership L.P and MPT Finance Corporation Subsidiary Issuer on combined

basis the guarantors of our 2011 and 2012 Senior Unsecured Notes Subsidiary Guarantors and

on combined basis the non-guarantor subsidiaries Non Guarantor Subsidiaries Separate

financial statements of the Subsidiary Guarantors are not presented because the guarantee by each 100%

owned Subsidiary Guarantor is joint and several and we believe separate financial statements and other

disclosures regarding the Subsidiary Guarantors are not material to investors Furthermore there are no

significant legal restrictions on the Parents ability to obtain funds from its subsidiaries by dividend or

loan

The guarantees by the Subsidiary Guarantors may be released and discharged upon any sale

exchange or transfer of all of the capital stock of Subsidiary Guarantor the merger or consolidation

ot Subsidiary Guarantor with Subsidiary Issuer or any other Subsidiary Guarantor the proper

designation of any Subsidiary Guarantor by the Subsidiary Issuers as unrestricted for covenant purposes

under the indenture governing the 2011 and 2012 Senior Unsecured Notes the
legal defeasance or

covenant defeasance or satisfaction and discharge of the indenture liquidation or dissolution of

Subsidiary Guarantor permitted under the indenture governing the 2011 and 2012 Senior Unsecured

Notes or the release or discharge of the Subsidiary Guarantor from its guarantee obligations under

our revolving credit facility

Subsequent to December 31 2011 certain of our subsidiaries were re-designated as guarantors of our

2011 and 2012 Senior Unsecured Notes such subsidiaries were non guarantors in 2011 while other

subsidiaries have been re designated as non guarantors as the underlying properties were sold in 2012

such subsidiaries were guarantors during 2011 With these re designations we have restated the 2011

and 2010 consolidating financial information below to reflect these changes
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CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

DECEMBER 31 2012

IN THOUSANDS

Subsidiary Subsidiary Non-Guarantor Total

Parent Issuers Guarantors Subsidiaries Eliminations Consolidated

Assets

Real estate assets

Land buildings and improvements and intangible lease assets

Net investment in direct financing leases

Mortgage loans

Gross investment in real estate assets

Accumulated depreciation and amortization

Net investment in real estate assets

Cash cash equivalents

Interest and rent receivables

Straight line rent receivables

Other loans

Net intercompany receivable ayable

Investment in subsidiaries

Other assets

Total Assets

Liabilities and Equity

Liabilities

14198 1025160

1028 65961

823 20609

16607 735 17342

27783 1037763 46742 16784 1129072

1049814 1050204 520503 169192 1739899 1049814

1077597 2087967 567245 185976 1739899 2178886

28 1214740 65947 1280715

110155 204257 314412

268650 100000 368650

28 1593545 370204 1963777

120282 6452 126734

28 1473263 363752 1837043

35483 1565 263 37311

212 29315 15762 45289

29314 6546 35860

177 159066 159243

27393 1373941 1010400 390934

1050204 647029 42666 1739899

31097 1522 31521 64140

1077597 2087967 567245 185976 1739899 2178886

1010962

27783 26658 10492

143 19643

Debt net

Accounts payable and accrued expenses

Deferred revenue

Lease deposits and other obligations to tenants

Total liabilites

Total Equity

Total Liabilities and Equity
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CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31 2012

IN THOUSANDS

Subsidiary Subsidiary Non-Guarantor Total

Parent Issuers Guarantors Subsidiaries Eliminations Consolidated

Revenues

115770 16619 9309 123080

6500 1482 7982

19870 18090 16232 21728

18341 29610 25387 24731 48607

18341 171750 61578 50272 201397

Real estate depreciation and amortization

Property-related

Acquisition expenses

General and administrative

Total operating expenses

Operating income

Other income expense

Interest and other expense income

Earnings from equity and other interests

Interest expense

Net other expense

Income loss from continuing operations

Income loss from discontinued operations

Equity in earnings of consolidated subsidiaries net of income taxes

Net income loss

Net income loss attributable to non controlling interests

Net income attributable to MPT common stockholders

Rent billed

Straight-line rent

Income from direct financing leases

Interest and fee income

Total revenues

Expenses

495 834 25707 25541 1495

5420 5420

26018 2564 28582

31933 32679 29971 25541 69042

13592 139071 31607 24731 132355

69 1593 1662

1061 1882 2943

58729 1408 25653 24731 58243

58798 2469 25364 24731 56962

72390 141540 6243 75393

102 14582 14684

90077 162467 4481 257025

90077 90077 146123 20825 257025 90077

177 177 177 177

89900 89900 146123 20825 256848 89900
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CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31 2012

IN THOUSANDS

Subsidiary Subsidiary Non Guarantor Total

Parent Issuers Guarantors Subsidiaries Eliminations Consolidated

Net income 90077 90077 146123 20825 257025 90077

Other comprehensive income

Unrealized loss on interest rate swap 251 251 251 251

Total comprehensive income 89826 89826 146123 20825 256774 89826

Comprehensive income attributable to non controlling interests 177 177 177 177

Comprehensive income attributable to MPT common stockholders 89649 89649 146123 20825 256597 89649
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CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31 2012

IN THOUSANDS

Operating Activities

Net cash provided by used in operating activities

Investing Activities

Cash paid for acquisitions and other related investments

Net proceeds from sales of real estate

Principal received on loans receivable

Investments in and advances to subsidiaries

Investments in loans receivable

Construction in progress and other

Net cash provided by used in investing activities

FinancingActivities

Additions to term debt

Payments of term debt

Revolving credit facilities net

Distributions paid

Lease deposits and other obligations to tenants

Proceeds from sale of common shares net of offering costs

Debt issuance costs paid and other financing activities

Net cash provided by used in financing activities

Increase decrease in cash and cash equivalents for period

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period

Subsidiary Subsidiary Non Guarantor Total

Parent Issuers Guarantors Subsidiaries Eliminations Consolidated

57 61002 168650 2396

420500 200990 621490

71202 71202

5491 5440 10931

I29421 501 RlQ 3f2404 130402 129364

1293 1293

578 66467 9433 76478

129421 502417 118982 4328 129364 617128

300000 300000

232 232

75000 39600 35400

103684 103952 103684 103952

9912 1524 11.436

233048 233048 233048 233048

6424 6424

129364 497672 49512 1756 129364 446404

65747 156 176 65415

101230 1409 87 102726

35483 1565 263 37311

105309
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Assets

Total Assets

Liabilities and Equity

Liabilities

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

DEcEMBER 31 2011

IN THOUSANDS

Subsidiary Subsidiary Non-Guarantor Total

Parent Issuers Guarantors Subsidiaries Eliminations Consolidated

Real estate assets

Land buildings and improvements and intangible lease assets

Real estate held for sale

Mortgage loans

Gross investment in real estate assets

Accumulated depreci2tion and amortization

Net investment in real estate assets

Cash cash equivalents

Interest and rent receivables

Straight-line rent receivables

Other loans

Net intercompany receivable payable

Investment in subsidiaries

Other assets

Debt net

Accounts payable and accrued expenses

Deferred revenue

Lease deposits and other obligations to tenants

Total liabilites

Total Equity

Total Liabilities and Equity

37 1139073 65947 1205057

4240 55553 59793

165000 165000

37 1308313 121500 1429850

88.438 4750 93188

37 1219875 116750 1336662

101230 1409 87 102726

399 22528 6935 29862

22813 11180 33993

178 5491 69170 74839

21955 872380 847921 46414

829205 489858 43008 1362071

27285 2151 14356 43792

851160 $1491367 469354 172064 1362071 1621874

635820 39600 14429 689849

22345 25783 2578 419 51125

559 21100 1648 23307

26400 2378 28778

22345 662162 89678 18874 793059

828815 829205 379676 153190 1362071 828815

851160 $1491367 469354 172064 1362071 1621874
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CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31 2011

IN THOUSANDS

Revenues

Rent billed

Straight line rent

Interest and fee income

Total revenues

Expenses

Subsidiary Subsidiary Non-Guarantor Total

Parent Issuers Guarantors Subsidiaries Eliminations Consolidated

102541 9286 3092 108735

3617 1762 5379

6124 17556 3926 6236 21370

6124 123714 14974 9328 135484

Real estate depreciation and amortization

Property-related

Acquisition expenses

General and administrative

Total operating expenses

Operating income

Other income expense

Interest income and other expense income

Earnings from equity and other interests

Debt refinancing costs

Interest expense

Net other expense

Income loss from continuing operations

Income loss from discontinued operations

Equity in earnings of consolidated subsidiaries net of income taxes

Net income

Net income attributable to non controlling interests

Net income attributable to MPT common stockholders

29238 1658 30896

217 472 3141 3092 738

3713 471 4184

17 23914 3288 27219

17 27844 29710 8558 3092 63037

17 21720 94004 6416 6236 72447

267 78

14109 14214

43063 139 7122 6236 43810

57146 381 7399 6236 57928

17 78866 94385 983 14519

197U 14165 12195

26731 105597 4578 136906

26714 26731 96993 13182 136906 26714

178 178 178 178

26536 26553 96993 13182 136728 26536

26

345

105

10 18
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CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31 2011

IN THOUSANDS

Subsidiary Subsidiary Non Guarantor Total

Parent Issuers Guarantors Subsidiaries Eliminations Consolidated

Net income 26714 26731 96993 13182 136906 26714

Other comprehensive income

Unrealized loss on interest rate swap 8590 8590 8590 8590

Total comprehensive income 18124 18141 96993 13182 128316 18124

Comprehensive income attributable to non-controlling interests 178 178 178 178

Comprehensive income attributable to MPT common stockholders 17946 17963 96993 13182 128138 17946
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CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31 2011

IN THOUSANDS

Subsidiary Subsidiary Non Guarantor Total

Parent Issuers Guarantors Subsidiaries Eliminations Consolidated

Operating Activities

Net cash provided by used in operating activities 209 48779 81173 47085 79270

Investing Activities

Cash paid for acquisitions and other related investments 241626 3Z337 278963

Net proceeds from sales of real estate 41130 41130

Principal received on loans receivable 230 4059 4289

Investments in and advances to sijhsidiaris 8Q551 02052 142448 50605 89342

Investments in loans receivable 230 631 861

Construction in progress and other 6466 24081 669 31216

Net cash provided by used in investing activities 89551 98518 123259 44053 89342 265621

FinancingActivities

Additions to term debt 450000 450000

Payments of term debt 237666 8433 163 246262

Revolving credit facilities net 50000 39600 89600

Distributions paid 89342 89601 89342 89601

Lease deposits and other obligations to tenants 10941 2320 8.621

Debt issuance costs paid and other financing activities 21028 661 21689

Net cash provided by used in financing activities 89342 151705 42108 3144 89342 190669

Increase decrease in cash and cash equivalents for period 4408 22 112 4318

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 96822 1387 199 98408

Cashandcashequivalentsatendofperiod 101230 1409 87 102726
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CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31 2010

IN THOUSANDS

Subsidiary Subsidiary Non-Guarantor Total

Parent Issuers Guarantors Subsidiaries Eliminations Consolidated

Revenues

131 1034 1165

6964 17225 9914 7514 26589

6964 91637 17967 8544 108024

Real estate depreciation and amortization

Impairment charge

Property-related

Acquisition expenses

General and administrative

Total operating expenses ________________________________________________________

Operating income

Other income expense

Interest and other expense income

Earnings from equity and other interests

Debt refinancing costs

Interest expense ____________ _______________________________________________

Net other income expense
____________________________________________________________________________

Income loss from continuing operations

Income loss from discontinued operations

Equity in earnings of consolidated subsidiaries net of income taxes

Net income

Net income attributable to non controlling interests

Net income attributable to MPT common stockholders

Rent billed

Straight line rent

Interest and fee income

Total revenues

Expenses

74281 7019 1030 80270

12s2 1o15 20897

12000 12000

4375 1040 1030 4381

2026 2026

75 25841 593 26509

75 27863 23657 15248 1030 65813

75 20899 67980 2719 7514 42211

14 1484 1473

45 45

6716

33623

40353

358

355

7517

5988

7514

7514

6716

33984

39182

75 61252 67625 3269 3029

896 19087 19983

23087 84339 4273 111699

23012 23087 72794 15818 111699 23012

99 99 99 99

22913 22988 72794 15818 111.600 22913
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CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31 2010

IN THOUSANDS

Subsidiary Subsidiary Non Guarantor Total

Parent Issuers Guarantors Subsidiaries Eliminations Consolidated

Net income 23012 23087 72794 15818 111699 23012

Other comprehensive income

Unrealized loss on interest rate swap 3641 3641 3641 3641
Total comprehensive income 19371 19446 72794 15818 108058 19371

Comprehensive income attributable to non-controlling interests 99 99 99 99
Comprehensive income attributable to MPT common stockholders 19272 19347 72794 15818 107959 19272
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Operating Activities

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31 2010

IN THOUSANDS

Subsidiary Subsidiary Non-Guarantor Total

Parent Issuers Guarantors Subsidiaries Eliminations Consolidated

Net cash provided by used in operating activities

Investing Activities

Cash paid for acquisitions and other related investments

Net proceeds from sales of real estate

Principal received on loans receivable

Investments in and advances to subsidiaries

Investments in loans receivable and other investments

Construction in progress and other

Net cash provided by used in investing activities

Financing Activities

Additions to term debt

Payments of term debt

Revolving credit facilities net

Distributions paid

Lease deposits arid other obligations to tenants

Proceeds from sale of common shares units net of offering costs

Debt issuance costs paid and other financing activities

Net cash provided by used in financing activities

Increase in cash and cash equivalents for period

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period

29 54908 92121 23453 60637

137808 137808

211181 995o4 94218 193811 211210

5000 6637 11637

108 7281 8540 15929

211181 99456 53202 23502 211210 22781

148500 148500

245 216765

137200

76856 77087

208

288066 288066 288066

9498 9498

211210 37461 37986 208 211210 317

82009 933 159 83101

14813 454 40 15307

96822 1387 199 98408

2669 95000

90486

97669

90486

216520

96000

76856 77087

41200

3459 36S7

288066
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CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Medical Properties Trust Inc Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

We have adopted and maintain disclosure controls and procedures that are designed to ensure that

information required to be disclosed in our reports under the Securities Exchange Act nf1Q34 as amended

is recorded processed summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the SECs rules and

forms and that such information is accumulated and communicated to our management including our

Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer as appropriate to allow for timely decisions regarding

required disclosure In designing and evaluating the disclosure controls and procedures management

recognizes that any controls and procedures no matter how well designed and operated can provide only

reasonable assurance of achieving the desired control objectives and management is required to apply

our judgment in evaluating the cost-benefit relationship of possible controls and procedures

As required by Rule 13a 15b under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as amended we have carried

out an evaluation under the supervision and with the participation of management including our

Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer of the effectiveness of the design and operation of

our disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the period covered by this report Based on the

foregoing our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that our disclosure controls

and procedures are effective in timely alerting them to material information required to be disclosed by

us in the reports that we file with the SEC

CHANGES IN INTERNAL CONTROLS OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

There has been no change in our internal control over financial reporting during our most recent fiscal

quarter that has materially affected or is reasonably likely to materially affect our internal control over

financial reporting

MANAGEMENTS REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL

REPORTING

The management of Medical Properties Trust Inc has prepared the consolidated financial statements

and other information in our Annual Report in accordance with accounting principles generally

accepted in the United States of America and is responsible for its accuracy The financial statements

necessarily include amounts that are based on managements best estimates and judgments In meeting

its responsibility management relies on internal accounting and related control systems The internal

control systems are designed to ensure that transactions are properly authorized and recorded in our

financial records and to safeguard our assets from material loss or misuse Such assurance cannot be

absolute because of inherent limitations in any internal control system

Management of Medical Properties Trust Inc is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate

internal control over financial reporting as defined in Rule 13a-15f of the Securities Exchange Act of

1934 Our internal control over financial reporting is process designed to provide reasonable assurance

regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external

purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles

Because of inherent limitations internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect

misstatements Also projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk

that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions or that the degree of compliance

with the policies or procedures may deteriorate

In connection with the preparation of our annual financial statements management has undertaken

an assessment of the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of December 31

2012 The assessment was based upon the framework described in the Integrated Control Integrated

Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission

COSO Managements assessment included an evaluation of the design of internal control over

financial reporting and testing of the operational effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting

We have reviewed the results of the assessment with the Audit Committee of our Board of Trustees

Based on our assessment under the criteria set forth in COSO management has concluded that as of

December 31 2012 Medical Properties Trust Inc maintained effective internal control over financial

reporting

The effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of December 31 2012 has been

audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP an independent registered public accounting firm as stated in

their report which appears herein
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PERFoRMANcE G1APH

The following graph provides comparison of cumulative total stockholder return for the period from

December 31 2007 through December 312012 among Medical Properties Trust Inc the Russell 2000

Index NAREIT Equity REIT Index and SNL US REIT Healthcare Index The stuck performance graph

assumes an investment of $100 in each of Medical Properties Trust Inc and the three indices and the

reinvestment of dividends The historical information below is not indicative of future performance

Index

Medical Properties Trust Inc

Russell 2000

NAREIT All Equity REIT Index

SNL US REIT Healthcare

Period Ending

12/31/07 12/31/08 12/31/09 12/31/10 12/31/11 12/31/12

100.00 72.28 49.44 88.68 103.74 102.00

100.00 98.43 65.18 82.89 105.14 100.75

100.00 84.31 52.50 67.20 85.98 93.10

100.00 101.44 90.32 115.37 137.64 157.58 Designed by Hodges Associates www.thehighroad.com
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